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1.1  PUBLIC ENTITY’S GENERAL INFORMATION  

 

REGISTERED NAME:           KALAHARI KID CORPORATION 

REGISTRATION NUMBER (if applicable):      2001/023533/07 

PHYSICAL ADDRESS:        13 Wessels Road 

                                              Rivonia 

                                            Sandton 

      2196 

POSTAL ADDRESS:      P O Box 988 

                                     Rivonia 

                                      2128 

TELEPHONE NUMBER/S:     +27 11 807 5624 

FAX NUMBER:      +27 11 807 5325 

EMAIL ADDRESS:      judith@kalaharikid.co.za 

WEBSITE ADDRESS:     www.kalaharikid.co.za 

EXTERNAL AUDITORS:     Auditor General   

BANKERS:      ABSA BANK 

BOARD SECRETARY    Judith Weidemann 
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1.2  LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS/ACRONYMS 

 

AA ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY 

ASGISA   ACCELERATED STRATEGIC GROWTH INITIATIVE 

BEE   BROAD-BASED ECONOMIC EMPOWERMENT 

CASP   COMPREHENSIVE RURAL DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME 

CEO   CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER  

CO-OPS   CO-OPERATIVES 

DoAL   DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, RURAL DEVELOPMENT AND LAND 
REFORM 

FAO   FOOD AND AGRICULTURAL ORGANISATION 

GRAP   GENERALLY RECOGNISED ACCOUNTING PRACTICE 

KKC   KALAHARI KID CORPORATION 

KKT   KALAHARI KID TRAINING  

MEC MEMBER OF THE EXECUTIVE COUNCIL OF THE DEPT OF AGRICULTURE,     
LAND REFORM AND RURAL DEVELOPMENT 

NCPG   NORTHERN CAPE PROVINCIAL GOVERNMENT 

PE   PUBLIC ENTITY 

PFMA   PUBLIC FINANCE MANAGEMENT ACT 

SLA   SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT 

SMME   SMALL, MEDIUM AND MICRO ENTERPRISE 

SPV   SPECIAL PURPOSE VEHICLE 

WIP   WORK IN PROGRESS 
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1.3  FOREWORD BY THE CHAIRPERSON 

Kalahari Kid Corporation (KKC) was an initiative by private individuals.  The aim of the project was 

to commercialize the goat industry in the Northern Cape Province.   At the same time the 

Provincial Department of Agriculture, Land Reform and Rural Development was implementing the 

Goat Commercialization Programmed.  It was therefore deemed appropriate by the Executive 

Council of the Northern Cape Provincial Government for KKC to be the special purpose vehicle 

through which the programme would be implemented.   

Various grants were disbursed to KKC to form and train co-operatives in order to provide a 

consistent supply of goat products to satisfy the market and to process and market goats and 

goat meat.  To this end KKC, supported by the Department of Agriculture, Land Reform and Rural 

Development had established co-operatives which have been included in the Goat 

Commercialization Programme, of which a number have been stocked with seed stock. 

The Members of the Board of Directors of KKC are Dr MH Hendricks (Executive Chairman), Mr J 

Choche (Co-operative Support, Production and Training) who replaced Mr W Maribe and J. 

Weidemann (Marketing, Procurement, Farm Production and Processing).  As a listed Public Entity 

under Section 3 (c) the Board of KKC (the Accounting Authority), is accountable to the Member of 

the Executive Council (MEC) for Agriculture, Land Reform and Rural Development of the Northern 

Cape Provincial Government. 

As a Developmental Programme the Goat Commercialisation Programme in general and KKC in 

particular is well placed.  It is developing emerging farmers through training, support and market 

access with the intention of them progressing into commercial farmers. This will have a significant 

impact on job creation and contribute towards poverty alleviation and eradication.  This could be 

further enhanced through the future Mala-Mamas Programme that seeks to use members in 

various rural and informal communities to become retailers for goat and offal products. They will 

sell the products from refrigerated containers that supply chilled cooler boxes for house to house 

distribution.  

During this financial year the upgrading of the Production Farms has been completed.  It is 

expected that this will reduce our stock losses and improve the goat kid mortality rates.  In 

addition the re-stocking of the farms has commenced. 

 

Yours faithfully, 

 

 

 

 

Dr MH Hendricks 

Accounting Authority 

Kalahari Kid Corporation 

 
 



9 
 

1.4 Statement of responsibility and confirmation of accuracy for the 
Annual  Report 
 

To the best of my knowledge and belief, I confirm the following:  

All information and amounts disclosed in the Annual Report is consistent with the Annual 
Financial Statements audited by the Auditor General. 

The Annual Report is complete, accurate and is free from any omissions. 

The Annual Report has been prepared in accordance with the guidelines on the Annual Report as 
issued by National Treasury. 

The Annual Financial Statements (Part E) have been prepared in accordance with the PFMA 
standards applicable to the public entity. 

The Accounting Authority is responsible for the preparation of the Annual Financial Statements 
and for the judgements made in this information.   

The Accounting Authority is responsible for establishing and implementing a system of internal 
control designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the 
performance information, the human resources information and the annual financial statements. 

The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the Annual Financial 
Statements. 

In our opinion, the Annual Report fairly reflects the operations, the performance information, the 
human resources information and the financial affairs of the entity for the financial year ended  
31 March 2016. 

 

Yours faithfully, 

 

 

 

 

Dr MH Hendricks 

Accounting Authority 

Kalahari Kid Corporation 
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1.5  STRATEGIC OVERVIEW 

1.5.1 VISION 

The vision of Kalahari Kid Corporation is to ‘Formalise the South African Goat Industry’ and 

become the Number 1 goat business in Africa. 

1.5.2  MISSION 

Kalahari Kid Corporation as a leader in the industry, will champion the commercialisation of goats 

in the market, promote and facilitate increased production and provide expertise for improved 

livelihoods, sustainable rural economy and food security for all. 

1.5.3  VALUES 

Business and services will be delivered within the spirit of the Constitution of the Republic of 

South Africa and other enabling legislation. 

 Professional services at all times and strive to improve the quality of goat genetics and 

outputs. 

 Ensure that all efforts have a positive impact on staff members and clients, especially goat 

co-operatives. 

 Work in partnership with the Department of Agriculture, Land Reform and Rural 

Development and with other role-players to improve quality and efficiency. 

 Uphold the spirit of Batho-Pele at all times. 

 

Kalahari Kid Corporation (KKC) was initially an initiative introduced by private individuals.  The 

aim of the project was to commercialise the goat industry in the Northern Cape Province.   At the 

same time the Provincial Department of Agriculture and Land Reform was implementing the Goat 

Commercialisation Programme.  It was therefore deemed appropriate by the Executive 

Committee of the Northern Cape Provincial Government for KKC to be the special purpose vehicle 

(SPV), through which the programme would be implemented.   

Various grants were disbursed to KKC by AgriSETA to form and train co-operatives in order to 

provide a consistent supply of goat products to satisfy the market and to process and market 

goats and goat meat.  To this end KKC, supported by the Department of Agriculture, Land Reform 

and Rural Development have identified some 150 co-operatives which have been included in the 

Goat Commercialisation Programme, of which some 45 have been stocked with seed stock.  This 

programme was however halted during the 2013/14 financial year, as the training facility at 

Koopmansfontein had not yet been upgraded and there were no training facilities made available 

to KKC to train co-operatives and goat interest groups. 

The Members of the Board of Directors of KKC are Dr. M. H. Hendricks (Executive Chairman,  Mr. 

J. Choche (Co-Op Production, Training and Support) who replaced Mr W.Maribe during the 

financial year and Ms. J. Weidemann (Marketing, Procurement, Farm Production and Processing).   

As a listed Public Entity the Board of KKC (the Accounting Authority),  is presently accountable to 

the Member of the Executive Council (MEC) for Agriculture,  Rural Development  and Land 

Reform of the Northern Cape Provincial Government.    
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In its application to National Treasury the Provincial MEC for Finance requested a listing as a 

Provincial Business Enterprise which would have allowed KKC to access external funding from the 

Industrial Development Corporation (IDC) and other funding entities.  The present listing, as a 

Public Entity under Section 3 (c) poses a challenge with respect to accessing external funding.  To 

this end discussions are being conducted with the Department and Provincial Treasury to re-

structure the entity.  

Given its mandate It is preferable for the Entity to operate as a “stand alone” enterprise, with its 

own staff, or in the interim staff seconded from the Department who will operate within the KKC 

management system. This includes having in-house financial and procurement capacity.  In order 

to achieve this the entity and the department are in the process of concluding a Service Level 

Agreement (SLA) which will deal with these challenges. This will allow for the more long term 

processes to be addressed.   

Central to the approach of KKC is the use of Production Farms.  Two farms are presently being 

leased. These farms are the pivot around which the system is constructed.  Co-operatives are 

supplied seed stock from the farms, funded by DoARL and they in turn are obligated, through 

signed contracts with KKC, to supply their kid goats to the farms for marketing.  In addition the 

farms are also stocked by KKC directly in order to achieve the required critical mass that will 

ensure a sustained and consistent supply to the market.  

Goats are prepared and sorted either for breeding or to be supplied to the abattoir for slaughter 

and then into the market.  The traceability programme is also managed from these farms and it 

acts as the hub for food safety.  At present the low stock levels at the farms precludes KKC from 

entering into long term off-take agreements with retailers.   The stock levels were kept low in 

view of the need for infrastructure upgrades on the farms. The first phase of the upgrades has 

been completed during the year under review. This has allowed for the re-stocking with new 

breeding stock to produce product for both local and international markets and supply to the co-

ops.  The DoARL is to provide the budget for the procurement of seed stock for the Co-operatives, 

Production Farms breeding stock and funds for the procurement of goats from the Co-operatives. 

With respect to marketing, KKC has become a recognised brand which is very important as the 

supply lines are being developed.  Many approaches are made to KKC to supply various markets. 

Restructuring the entity will facilitate these developments. 

As a Developmental Programme the Goat Commercialisation Programme in general and KKC in 

particular is well placed.  It is developing the emerging farmers with the training, support and 

market access with the intention of them progressing into commercial farmers. This will have a 

significant impact on job creation and contribute towards poverty alleviation and eradication. 

This will be further enhanced through the Mala-Mamas programme that seeks to use members in 

the communities to become retailers of goat products.  

The Development Programme of KKC is unique through the establishment and mentoring of the 

co-operatives, supplying of seed stock and the off take of goats from them. This approach ensures 

sustainability and contributes towards job creation and poverty eradication. 
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1.6  LEGISLATIVE AND OTHER MANDATES 

Kalahari Kid Corporation functions under several legislative mandates, which include among 

others the following: 

Constitutional mandates 

The Department of Agriculture, Land Reform and Rural Development is an integral part of the 
South African Public Service established in terms of section 197 of the Constitution and read with 
7 (1) and 7 (2) of the Public Service Act of 1994.  In particular the following sections are relevant 
to KKC  

 Public Entity Section 3 c 
 

Legislative mandates 

 Agri BEE 

 Agricultural Development Fund Act, 1993 (Act No 175 of 1993) 

 Agricultural Product Standards Act, 1990 (Act No 119 of 1990) 

 Agricultural Research Act, 1990 (Act No 86 of 1990) 

 Animal Diseases Amendment Act, 1991 (Act 18 of 1984) 

 Animal Identification Act, 2002 (Act No 6 of 2002 

 Animal Improvement Act, 1998 (Act 62 of 1998) 

 Basic Conditions of Employment Act (Act 75 of 1997) 

 Broad Based Black Economic Empowerment Act, 2003 (Act No 53 of 2003) 

 Codex Alimentarius of the World Health Organization (WHO) and Food and Agricultural 
Organization (FAO) (International Code on Food Safety) 

 Communal Land Rights Act, 2004 

 Conservation of Agricultural Resources Act, 1983 (Act 43 of 1983) 

 Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 (Act 108 of 1996) 

 Consumer Protection Act (Act 68 of 2008) 

 Disaster Management Act, 2002 (Act No 57 of 2002) 

 Employment Equity Act (Act 55 of 1998) 

 Fencing Act, 1963 (Act No 31 of 1963) 

 Fertilisers, Farm Feeds, Agricultural Remedies and Stock Remedies Act, 1947 (Act 36 of 
1947) 

 Food Safety Act (No. 40 of 2000) 

 Generally Recognised Accounting Practice 

 Genetically Modified Organisms Act, 1997 (Act No 15 of 1997) 

 Labour Relations Act (Act 66 of 1995) 

 Land Redistribution for Agricultural Development (LRAD) 

 Land Reform Act, 1997 (Act 3 of 1997) 

 Marketing of Agricultural Produce Act, 1996 (Act 47 of 1996) 

 Meat Safety Act, 2000 (Act 40 of 2000) 

 National Credit Act (Act 34 of 2005) 

 Natural Sciences Profession Act 2003 

 Occupational Health and Safety Act (Act 85 of 1993) 

 Pension Funds Act (Act 24 of 1956) 

 Perishable Product Export Control Act, 1983 (Act 9 of 1983) 

 Plant Improvement Act, 1976 (Act 53 of 1976) 
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 Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act, 2000 (Act 5 of 2000) 

 Preferential Procurement Regulations of August 2001 

 Promotion of Access to Information Act (Act 2 of 2000) 

 Provincial Supply Chain Management Policy (April 2006) 

 Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (PFMA) Act 1 of 1999 as amended by Act 29 of 
1999 

 Public Institutions listed in PFMA Schedule 1, 2, 3A, 3B, 3C and 3D as at 31 December 
2010 

 Risk Management Act 

 Skills Development Act (Act 9 of 1999) 

 South African Abattoir Corporation Act, 2005 Repeal (Act 27 of 2005) 

 Subdivision of Agricultural Land Act, 1970 (Act 70 of 1970) (pending repeal) 

 The Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment Act (2003) 

 The Employment Equity Act (No 55 of 1998) 

 The International Animal Health Code of the World Organization for Animal Health (OIE – 
Office International des Epizooties) 

 The international Code for Laboratory Diagnostic Procedure for Animal Diseases of the 
World Organization for Animal Health 

 The Sanitary and Phyto-sanitary Agreement of the World Trade Organization (WTO) 

 Tobacco Products Control Act (Act 85 of 1993) 

 Treasury Regulations for Departments, constitutional institutions and public entities 
issued in March 2005 in terms of the PFMA 

 Water Act 1998. 
 
Policy mandates 
National Development Plan 
Government has adopted the National Development Plan (NDP) 2030 which aims to eliminate 
poverty and reduce inequality by 2030. The NDP was developed against the backdrop of a 
diagnostic document which identified the main challenges confronting the country and examined 
their underlying causes. In relation to Comprehensive Rural Development the NDP identifies the 
following key challenges: 

 Apartheid’s spatial design (patterns) inevitably resulted in fragmented and segregated 

development planning, without viable economic, social and cultural linkages between 

the economically active and relatively prosperous commercial urban areas of the 

country and the rural hinterland. 

 Land reform has not yet translated into the establishment of sufficient numbers of 

sustainable new black farmers and restitution, in particular, has been quite slow. 

 The economic growth of the agricultural sector has been constrained by insufficient 

progress in increasing production efficiency and accessing new markets and 

opportunities, the effect of globalisation on South Africa’s competitiveness and policy 

uncertainty, resulting in job losses. 

Against the backdrop of these challenges the NDP 2030 vision is rural areas which are spatially, 
socially and economically well integrated—across municipal, district, provincial and regional 
boundaries—where residents have economic growth, food security and jobs as a result of 
agrarian transformation and infrastructure development programmes, and have improved access 
to basic services, health care and quality education. In addition, it is expected that by 2030 
agriculture will create close to 1 million new jobs, contributing significantly to reducing overall 
unemployment.  
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The NDP is a long term plan for development in South Africa upon which all government medium 
term plans have to be based. Table 1 demonstrates the linkage between the DALR&RD initiatives 
during the MTSF period and focus areas and core actions of the NDP 2030.  
 
Other planned policy initiatives from the DoAL: 

 Cooperative Development Strategy 

 Northern Cape Comprehensive Rural Development Strategy 

 Northern Cape Livestock Production and Development Programme (NC-LPDP) 

 Revitalising the agriculture & agro processing value chain 
 
 
 

1.7 ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE 

Kalahari Kid Corporation is a listed Public Entity under Section 3 (c) which reports to the MEC of 

the Department of Agriculture, Land Reform and Rural Development. The Entity operates 

according to the priorities set by the Office of the MEC which emanates from the policy 

directives, policy speech and public statements. Therefore the Entity participates in facilitating 

interventions aimed at fast tracking delivery of certain key programmes such as the 

Commercialisation of Goats Programme in the Northern Cape Province.  A summarised structure 

in terms of reporting is outlined below: 
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2.1  AUDITORS REPORT:  PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES 

The Auditor General currently performs the necessary audit procedures on the performance 
information to provide reasonable assurance in the form of an audit conclusion.  The audit 
conclusion on the performance against the predetermined objectives is included in the report to 
management, with material findings being reported under the Predetermined Objectives heading 
in the Report on other legal and regulatory requirements section of the auditor’s report. 
Refer to page 40 of the Report of the Auditors Report, published as Part E:  Financial Information. 

 

2.2  SITUATIONAL ANALYSIS 

2.2.1  Service Delivery Environment 
 

The National Livestock Strategy Plan is aligned to the Presidential Imperatives and the Strategic 

Plan of the Northern Cape Department of Agriculture, Land Reform and Rural Development, 

emphasising the need to enhance equitable access and participation in agriculture, improve 

global competitiveness and profitability and ensure sustainable resource management.  The KKC 

programme supports and progresses all of the above strategies.  KKC is reliant on co-operation 

and partnerships at National and Provincial level and operates within the ambit of Government 

directives of the National Ministry of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries. 

The National Livestock strategy for South Africa was developed in 2004 and was adopted by ITCAL 

during 2006.   Natural based livestock farming occupies about 80% of all Agricultural Land and 

more than 60% of this is in the Northern Cape.  Livestock farming is considered a major 

contributor to economic development.  Animal products are a major contributor to the balanced 

diets for humans and provide the biological protein, vitamins and minerals. 

Rural communities have livestock which through the KKC programme can be improved and used 

towards socio-economic development as supported by the Presidential Agricultural Programme.  

Presently South Africa is a net importer of red meat, but this could change with a target of 30% of 

agricultural land being considered to expand the livestock sector.  A factor to consider is that the 

trade in livestock products in South Africa exceeds the present production – (refer to the FAO 

report). 

The aim of the Province and KKC is to be the leading goat production and processing company in 

Southern Africa, by: 

a) Establishing and managing Production Farms to produce high quality goat breeding stock, 

flock stock and slaughter stock.  This is in progress and presently the KKC farms in 

Groblershoop in the Municipal District of Ikheis, houses more than 400 goats.   Over 1000 

goats were sold and the farms need to be restocked with new young genetically improved 

stock. The farms, Rooisand and Boegoeberg need additional infrastructure in order to 

facilitate the effective breeding of good genetic breeding and slaughter stock, for supply 

to the co-operatives and various markets.  Infrastructure upgrades commenced during 
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the 2014/15 financial year and progress beyond.  Additional fencing, dip stations, 

accommodation, water ablution and electricity need to be installed. 

b) Farmer co-operatives, Trusts and Goat Interest Groups have been identified and 

registered as legal entities that have been trained by Kalahari Kid Training (KKT), a wholly 

owned subsidiary of KKC. 

c) To date, more than 150 of these Co-operatives or Trusts exist on the database and some 

received seed stock.  The DoAL have agreed to stock these co-ops with seed stock via KKC 

Production farms for which they will re-imburse KKC.  Should the seed stock be procured 

from other sources, KKC will facilitate in the procurement and distribution of such seed 

stock which will be financed by the DoAL.  Agreements to supply all the kids derived from 

these seed stock will be signed between KKC and the co-ops to ensure that the co-ops 

supply all their marketing stock to KKC and to assist KKC with reaching the critical mass of 

goats required for various markets.  The budget for this is to be approved by the DoAL. 

d) Processing takes place at GWK Abattoir in Groblershoop, with whom KKC have a slaughter 

agreement and processing and delivery understanding. 

e) The Commercialisation of Goats, through KKC provides a “marketing arm” for the 

emerging farmers that belong to the Co-operatives and Trusts, which adds value to the 

carcass, distributes and markets all goat products both locally and internationally. 

f) KKC co-ordinates the activities of all the major role players in the goat industry and 

through its processes, allows the emerging farmers to be involved in the production of 

goats and participation right through the value added chain. 

g) The KKC concept is a major job creator and a job intensive industry.  It is reliant on 

personal involvement of the farmers to add to the critical mass of goats required for the 

market. 

h) The Commercialisation of Goats through KKC offers many opportunities for SMME growth 
and development and supports the Presidential Agricultural Programme to develop 
subsistence farmers, SME’s, SMME’s and rural development. 

i) New breeding stock for the Production farms needs to be procured by KKC as all the old 
stock on the farms were over 8 years old and were sold.  The DoAL needs to make 
provision for the budget to procure the new breeding stock required as well as the 
budget to purchase goats from the Co-operatives and to stock the Co-ops with seed 
stock. 

j) The office of the Small Business Development are most interested in supporting KKC to 
respond with new co-ops, create SMME’s and the roll out of Mala-Mamas. 

  

2.2.2  Performance Environment 

Under the present status as a Public Entity, KKC is precluded from accessing much needed funds 

that are imperative to stimulate the growth of the company as a whole and to procure new 

breeding stock to grow the critical mass needed for various markets, locally and internationally.  

Presently KKC have orders exceeding 2800 goats and are unable to supply.  KKC as a Public Entity 

cannot access funds or trade in a fair and entrepreneurial market as the rules of a Public Entity 

and the PFMA place stringent restriction on the operation of KKC who are precluded from being 

able to operate on a commercial level.  It is imperative that the status of KKC be changed back to 

a (Pty) Ltd. 
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The Mala-Mama Programme is a major source of income and ticks the various boxes of job 

creation; alleviating poverty in rural and urban areas; empowering women and the youth; food 

safety; entrepreneurship and promoting a sustainable business environment. 

 

2.2.3  Organisational Environment  

Kalahari Kid Corporation (KKC) is the organisational vehicle through which the Department of 

Agriculture, Land Reform and Rural Development gives effect to the Commercialisation of Goat 

Farming Programme. The primary aim is to develop subsistence farmers into commercial farmers 

in order to ensure sustainability of the industry.  To achieve this aim the following developmental 

and economic objectives have been set: 

 Development of emerging goat farmers. 

 Job creation. 

 Economic growth. 

 Marketing of goat products. 

 Food security. 

 Empowerment of women and youth. 

A Commercial Entity is required to achieve these objectives and KKC is the SPV for this purpose.  

KKC is 100% owned by the Northern Cape Government and is expected to function as a 

commercial entity.  An application was therefore made to National Treasury by the MEC for 

Finance for KKC to be listed as a Provincial Business Enterprise. This would allow KKC to trade 

with its finances being managed separately from that of Government and for it to access external 

funding.  It will be accountable to the Department and require approval if external funding is 

sought.  All personnel performing duties associated with the mandate of KKC would be employed 

by and be accountable to KKC management. 

In preparation for this function and the expected listing KKC designed a Business Model which 

contained the following elements: 

 The lease of two Production farms 15,000 hectares in extent. 

 The business model supports an operational Organogram, which populates the various 

positions required to operate KKC as a viable Business Enterprise. 

 The Organogram covers the appointment of KKC’s own Farm Manager and the 

secondment of all Farm staff and Agricultural Researches required to develop the co-ops 

and Production Farms. 

 The Department would improve the infrastructure on the farms to ensure the security of 

the stock and to allow for safe breeding conditions.  

 An additional farm of approximately 10 000ha would also form part of the land required 

to farm with 10 000 goats. 

 These farms would be stocked with 5,000 to 10,000 goats for slaughter and breeding and 

supply to co-operatives. This number of goats is considered a critical mass in order to 

ensure a consistent supply to the market. 
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 A traceability programme was implemented which is a requirement for the export of 

meat.    

 Establishing farmer co-operatives as the primary source of goats for the market. These 

farmers are contractually bound to supply goats to KKC exclusively. 

 Registering a training Entity to train the members of the co-operatives. The training 

course is accredited by the Agri-SETA. 

 The Department of Agriculture supplies seed stock through KKC to the co-operatives after 

the completion of their training. 

 A Slaughter Agreement was entered into with an abattoir in Groblershoop, namely GWK. 

 Commence negotiations for off-take agreements with retail outlets to be concluded once 

the goat numbers at the Production Farms allows KKC to commit to a consistent supply of 

product.  Two additional retail outlets have already been identified and supplied. 

 Popularise KKC as a recognisable brand for goat meat.  This is already established. 

 

KKC also approached the Industrial Development Corporation (IDC) to secure funding for the 

implementation of the business model.  A feasibility study was performed by the IDC and funding 

in the amount of R 17.4 million was earmarked for KKC. In terms of the Term Sheet the IDC would 

acquire 30% shareholding in KKC and be represented on the Board.  This shareholding to be 

warehoused by the IDC until handed over to the emerging farmers. 

The Northern Cape Provincial Executive Council approved the plans as well as the loan from the 

IDC.   The MEC for Finance then approached National Treasury for a listing for KKC as a Provincial 

Business Enterprise. 

National Treasury however felt that KKC would not function as a self-sustaining Commercial 

Entity and as a result KKC was listed in December 2010 as a Schedule 3 (c) Public Entity rather 

than a Business Enterprise. This listing precludes KKC from implementing its business model as 

envisaged. In particular it cannot trade independent of Government and it cannot source funding 

from the IDC. 

 
2.3  STRATEGIC ORIENTATED GOALS 

The Entity has three programmes through which its mandate is executed and was approved by 

the Board of Directors. 

Strategic outcome oriented 

goal  
 TO COMMERCIALISE THE GOAT INDUSTRY 

Goal statement 
To Commercialise the Goat Industry through enabling 

subsistence emerging farmers to become commercial farmers  
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2.4  PERFORMANCE INFORMATION BY PROGRAMME 

2.4.1  Programme 1:  Administration 

This programme manages all administration and internal financial aspects and ensures that there are 

support services to Programme 2 and Programme 3 with regards to accounting, information, 

communication, risk, HR support co-ordination of administration and co-operatives, especially for the 

marketing programme and procurement and the updating of co-operative information. 

Strategic  
Objective  

To provide strategic, leadership direction and relevant support services to the 
core programmes. 

Objective 
Statement 

To translate policies and priorities into strategies for service delivery and to 

manage, monitor and measure performance. 
Ensure an appropriate support service based on Corporate Governance 
principles. 
To ensure effective, efficient and economical use of departmental resources 

towards the attainment of Entity’s objectives. 

Baseline 

Quarterly reports and all Accounting Functions, including preparation of 
Financial statements. 
Strategic Plan development. 
Annual Performance Plans. 
Policies and support functions are in place. 
Financial and risk management policies including support functions are in place. 

 

Programme 1: Administration 

Performance Indicator 
Actual 
Achievement 
2014/2015 

Planned 
Target 
2015/2016 

Actual 
Achievement 
2015/2016 

Deviation from 
planned target 
to Actual 
Achievement 
for 2015/2016 

Comment on 
deviations 

Number of consolidated 
performance reports and 
Plan 

5 5 5 0 - 

Number of Reports on 
Management of 
Performance and Human 
Capital Development 

0 28 14 14 Managements 
appraisals to be 
completed and 
the farm 
manager joined 
the Entity during 
the course of the 
year and 
therefore does 
not have 4 
assessments   

Fund Requisitions 
submitted 

4 4 4 0  

Annual financial 
statements submitted 
timeously 

1 1 1 0  

Quarterly Assets and 
Inventory Reconciliations 
performed 

4 4 4 0  

Number of Bank 
reconciliations performed 

52 52 52 0  
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Strategy to overcome areas of under performance 

 Relevant policies to be implemented. 

 Develop and monitor the Implementation of the Audit Action Plans with responsible 

personnel aligned to each action.  To be time bound. 

 Quarterly assessments will be completed and performance monitored as per the 

performance agreements. 

 

Changes to planned targets 

No targets have been changed in year.  

Linking performance with budgets 

The Entity’s budget of R 2 550 000 that was approved was utilised for operating expenses. 

Conditional Grant amount of R 502 637.49 for the year under review and was utilized for farm 

expenses. 

 

 

 

 

 

2.4.2  Programme 2:  Production and Training 

This programme provides relevant agricultural production and training support to goat co-operatives, 

individual goat farmers and management of production farms in order to ensure sustainable 

agricultural growth. The advice on production and skills development should be updated, relevant and 

based on sound research. 
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Strategic Objective  
Establishment and promotion of partnerships with regard to implementation of 
co-operative development model, management of production and technology 
transfer systems. 

Objective 
Statement 

To co-ordinate partnerships and promote cooperative development model, 
increase production and manage technology transfer systems. 

Baseline 

Provision of spatial agricultural production indicators and the transfer of 
appropriate technologies via information days, brochures and training.   Supply 
and control of seed stock provided to co-operatives and monitoring offspring 
for take-off by KKC. 

 

Programme / Sub-programme:  Production and Training 

Performance Indicator 

Actual 
Achievem
ent 
2014/2015 

Planned 
Target 
2015/2016 

Actual 
Achievement 
2015/2016 

Deviation from 
planned target 
to Actual 
Achievement 
for 2015/2016 

Comment on 

deviations 

Number of 
cooperatives supported 
with animal production 
kits 

20 20 11 9 Capacity and financial 

constraints 

Number of farmers 
trained 
 

200 250 450 200 More training sessions 

were held in 

collaboration with the 

Extension and Advisory 

Services than planned 

Number of farmer Days 
conducted 
 

4 4 8 4 Efforts taken to revive 

goat co-ops in districts 

Number of farm reports 
on goats statistics 

4 4 4 -  

 

Strategy to overcome areas of under performance 

The strategy adopted by the Department and KKC is to second various staff members to KKC to 

fulfil the role of training co-operatives and subsistence farmers and supply them with starter 

packs and seed stock.  An intensive programme to revive co-ops and goat interest groups is 

already underway.  KKC has budget constraints and the Department are looking at methods to 

assist to fast track the stocking of co-operatives and the Production Farms. 

 

Changes to planned targets 

No targets have been changed in year.  

Linking performance with budgets 

In the past the budget was not captured per programme.  The changes reflect in the new financial 

year. 
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2.4.3  Programme 3:  Marketing, Processing, Procurement and Sales 

The component provides relevant agricultural marketing support to goat co-operatives and individual 

goat farmers in order to ensure sustainable agricultural development. This component purchases from 

the co-operatives and sells into retail and other markets, depending on the form of processing such 

markets require, or whether they require the product live.  Marketing procures stock for the farms for 

breeding and onward sales and manages the processing of all goats through the system, including 

market analysis and information regarding strategies and research. 

 

Strategic 
Objective  

The development and management of a marketing support system. 

Objective 
Statement 

To provide relevant agricultural marketing support to goat cooperatives, individual 
goat farmers and production farms in order to ensure sustainable agricultural 
development. 

Baseline 
Marketing of goats, goat meat and goat related products both locally and 
internationally. 
Ensure sustainable incomes for Co-operatives through acquiring their goats. 

 

Key performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements 

Programme / Sub-programme:  Marketing, Processing, Procurement and Sales 

Performance Indicator 

Actual 

Achievement 

2014/2015 

Planned 

Target 

2015/2016 

Actual 

Achievement 

2015/2016 

Deviation from 

planned target 

to Actual 

Achievement 

for 2015/2016 

Comment on 

deviations 

Number of goats 
slaughtered 
 

243 150 213 63  

Number of live goats 
sold 
 

1,069 500 0 500 All the orders placed 

were for slaughtered, 

hence over 

performance on the 

indicator above as we 

are trying to add value 

in the Province 

Number of goats 
purchased from Co-ops 
and Commercial farmers 
 

127 100 770 670 Restocking of farms for 

Production 

Number of markets 
identified – live and 
slaughtered 

10 7 21 14 Markets are becoming 

more aware of the 

brand 

 

Strategy to overcome areas of under performance 

The Province has requested that we are to add value within the Province instead of selling live 

goats to other markets where they add value.  It is our intention to slaughter more goats going 

forward and enter into new export markets as opposed to selling live goats to KZN.  The 

Production Farms had no goats for sale as they were recently re-stocked (2015) as all the old 

goats were sold in the previous financial year.  The annual grant of R800 000 from the 
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Department to KKC was also not transferred to KKC so no purchases could be made from co-

operatives when they had stock to sell and to enable KKC to trade with buying and selling live 

stock. 

 

KKC have requested the transfer of the R800 000 from the Department in order to buy goats for 

sale. 

 

Changes to planned targets 

In the past the budget was not captured per programme.  The changes reflect in the new financial 

year. 

 

2.5  Revenue Collection 

 2015/2016 2014/2015 

Sources of 

revenue 

 

Estimate  Actual  

Amount 

Collected 

(Over)/ 

Under 

Collection 

 

Estimate  

 

Actual  

Amount 

Collected 

(Over)/Under 

Collection 

 

 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 

Sales 440 250 190 400 969 (569) 

Other Income 28 26 2 24 28 (8) 

Total 468 276 192 424 997 (577) 

Revenue for the 2015/16 period was under collected as a result of the minimum stock on hand at 

the farms.  The entity is also busy trying to co-ordinate the co-operatives.    

 

 

2.6  Capital Investment 
 

Phase 1 of the Infrastructure on the farms has been completed. 

 

Asset Management: 

The farms will be re-stocked with new genetics, once funds are received form the Department to 

purchase breeding stock for the Production Farms and co-operatives. 

 

There are no plans to close down or down-grade any current facilities. 

 

Progress made on the maintenance of infrastructure: 

- Rehabilitation of water reticulation on Rooisand 

- Installed hexagonal goat fencing on all cattle fencing 

- Repairs to borehole and windmills 

 

Details as to how asset holdings have changed over the period under review, including 

information on disposals, scrapping and loss due to theft: 

Theft occurred during the period under review. 
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Cases were reported to SAPS and the matters are still under investigation. 

 

Measures taken to ensure that the Entity’s asset register remained up-to-date during the period 

under review: 

All assets were identified and the register updated accordingly. 

 

The current state of the public entity’s capital assets:   

ASSET CATEGORY  GOOD/FAIR/BAD PERCENTAGE 

Other Assets                                   Fair                        60%        

Infrastructure                                 Good                      75% 

Furniture & Fittings                       Fair                          60% 

Computer Equipment                 Fair                          80% 

Tools                                          Fair                       60% 

Software                                     Good                      100% 

 

Major maintenance projects that have been undertaken during the period under review: 

- Rehabilitation of water reticulation on Rooisand 

- Installed hexagonal goat fencing on all cattle fencing 

- Repairs to borehole and windmills 

 

Progress made in addressing the maintenance backlog during the period under review, for 

example, has the backlog grown or become smaller?  Is the rate of progress according to plan? If 

not why not, and what measures were taken to keep on track:         

The backlog has become smaller but not yet complete.  Staff housing and storage and ablutions 

are still outstanding.  The Department has not allocated a budget to KKC for the necessary 

maintenance and infrastructure, including a much needed tractor and trailer, for moving goats 

around as well as creating fire breaks around the farms. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



26 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PART C: GOVERNANCE 
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3.1  INTRODUCTION 

 

Corporate governance embodies processes and systems by which Public Entities are directed, 

controlled and held to account. In addition to legislative requirements based on a Public Entity’s  

enabling legislation, and the Companies Act, Corporate Governance with regard to public entity’s 

is applied through the precepts of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA) and run in tandem 

with the principles contained in the King’s Report on Corporate Governance. 

 

Parliament, the Executive and the Accounting Authority of the Public Entity are responsible for 

Corporate Governance. 

 

Corporate Governance remains pivotal to the organisations operation, complemented by the 

creation of an environment conducive to people development, skills development and 

mentorships by the Public Entity to co-operatives and emerging farmers.  All Senior Management 

of the Entity have completed an Advanced Corporate Governance Course and GRAP course 

funded by Treasury. 

 

3.2  PORTFOLIO COMMITTEES 

n/a 

 

3.3  EXECUTIVE AUTHORITY 

Reports submitted to the Executive Authority: 

 Annual report 2014/15 
 SCOPA report 
 Service Level Agreement 
 Public Entity Delisting request 

 

 

3.4  THE ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY / THE BOARD  

The PFMA requires that the Accounting Authority implements effective, efficient and transparent 

systems of financial and risk management and internal control, as well as a system of internal 

audit under the control of an Audit Committee. 

 

The Accounting Authority is responsible for effective, efficient and transparent systems of 

financial and risk management and internal control, therefore should implement best practice 

methodologies to comply with the PFMA and relevant prescripts. 

 

The board should take account of the legitimate interests of stakeholders in its decisions. 
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The board should strive to achieve the correct balance between its various stakeholder groupings, 

in order to advance the interests of the company. 

 

The board should promote mutual respect between the company and its stakeholders. 

 

Composition of the Board  

Name Designation  
Date 
appointed 

Date 
resign
ed 

Qualificati
ons 

Area of 
Expertise 

Board 
Directorshi
ps 

Other 
Comm
ittees 

No. of 
Meetings 
attended 

Dr M 
Hendricks 

Chairperson/ 
Accounting 
Authority 

2003 n/a 

MB ChB, 
M.Sc 
(Med), Dip 
HM 

Executive 
Management 

KKC, Vuna 
Harvest; 
Vuna Coal 
Holdings 

- 2 

Ms J 
Weidemann 

Director 2001 n/a 
Dipl. Bus 
Mngt/Mktg 

Marketing 
KKC; 
Organic Fish 
Direct 

- 2 

Mr W 
Maribe 

Director 2004/5 
Oct 
2015 

Mng Cert 
(UFS) BSC 
Agric Hons 
(UFS) 

Production 
and Training 

KKC, 
Kalahari Kid 
Training 

Tender 
Commi
ttee 
KKC 

- 

Mr BJ 
Choche 

Director 

2015 
appointed 
director, 
awaiting 
updated 
company 
documents 

n/a 

a)M.Inst.Ag
rar degree 
(2003) 
b)B.Inst.Agr
ar (honors) 
1995 
c)Post 
Graduate 
Degree in 
Education(
1993) 
d)B.Agric 
Degree 
(1987) 
e)Dip in 
Agric ( 
1984) 

Production 
and Training 

KKC, KKT - 2 

 

 

3.5  RISK MANAGEMENT 

Risk Management addresses all kinds of material risk to the objectives of the Entity.  It is 

recognised as an appropriate way of managing risk.   

 

The PFMA states that the Entity is to implement a Risk Management Plan.  The Risk Management 

Plan must provide the Entity with the ability to systematically identify new and emerging risk. 
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The internal control deficiencies and other risk mitigation mechanisms should be implemented to 

minimise/ curb the risk. 

 

The Entity had a risk register for the 2015-16 financial year and the assessments were performed 

annually. 

 

3.6  INTERNAL CONTROL UNIT 

The Entity did not have an Internal Control Unit in place, however a number of Internal Control 

mechanisms were in place to ensure the efficient, effective and economical usage of resources.  

These issues are outlined in the Dashboard / Implementation Plan. 

 

 

3.7  INTERNAL AUDIT AND AUDIT COMMITTEES 

A resolution was taken by the Executive Council on the 23 February 2016 to extend the Internal 

Audit Unit as well as the Internal Audit Committee shared services to all Public Entities. 

 

3.8  COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS 

Policies are in place to ensure the efficient and effectiveness of the resources utilised and also to 

improve the reporting structures as required by GRAP and other legislative requirements. 

 

3.9  FRAUD AND CORRUPTION   

An Anti-Fraud and Corruption policy has was adopted.  This policy will establish to facilitate the 

development of controls which will assist in the prevention and detection of fraud and 

corruption, as well as provide guidelines as to how to respond should instances of fraud and 

corruption be identified.   

 

3.10  MINIMISING CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

Subject to the provisions of the Act, where Management has an interest in a matter being 

considered, this interest shall be declared at the beginning of the proceedings and the person 

must recuse him/herself from the decision-making process. 

 

3.11  CODE OF CONDUCT  

The Kalahari Kid Corporation code of ethics (The Code) was created to reflect the core principles 

of the company, and to guide employees on some of the most important ethical issues in a 

business environment. The Code is complimented by a number of corporate compliance policies, 

which provide more detailed guidelines on specific issues, thereby ensuring that we conduct our 

business, not only in accordance with the law, but also in an ethical manner.  The manual 
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contains a summary of the Code and the guidelines on specific issues set out in the policies. 

Copies of the policies themselves may be obtained from the Group Financial Department. 

 

Any employee who fails to comply with this Code of Ethics will be disciplined by the company 

and/or may face prosecution in terms of the laws of the state and country in which s/he operates. 

 

3.12  HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES 

KKC is committed to sound health, safety and environmental management practices. KKC's policy 

is to meet or exceed applicable safety and environmental laws, regulations and orders of the 

responsible governmental authorities wherever KKC operates and is committed to the 

responsible management of its activities and continuous improvement in environmental and 

safety performance. 

 

3.13  COMPANY BOARD SECRETARY 

Ms Judith Weidemann 

 

3.14  SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

The Entity empowers the community in various districts by: 

 establishing co-ops 

 training co-ops 

 supplying seed stock 

 marketing, sales and procuring from the co-ops 

 food security 

 

 

3.15  AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT 

The Exco resolution for the implementation of the Audit Committee will be effective from 1 April 

2016. 
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PART D: HUMAN RESOURCE 

MANAGEMENT 
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4.1  INTRODUCTION  

 

The KKC HR Policy aims to: 

 Establish and properly document KALAHARI KID CORPORATION policies, procedures and 
practices in all areas relating to Human Resources (HR). These policies undergo constant 
review and amendment as and when the Company deems fit and appropriate; 

 Provide a framework for the development of appropriate authorisations and approval 
limits within the Company; 

 Assist employees to understand correctly the HR policies for their accurate 
interpretation; 

 Ensure consistent HR policies throughout the Company. 
       

Future HR plans /goals: 

All farm staff to be seconded to KKC 

 

It is of utmost importance that all staff involved in the day to day operations of the farm, training 

and production should be seconded to the Public Entity in order that the Public Entity can be held 

responsible for the Appraisals of such staff. 

 

4.2  HUMAN RESOURCE OVERSIGHT STATISTICS  

Personnel Costs 

Account  

Total 

Expenditure 

for the entity 

(R’000) 

Personnel 

Expenditure 

(R’000) 

Personnel exp. 

as a % of total  

exp. (R’000) 

No. of 

employees 

Average 

personnel cost 

per employee 

(R’000) 

Personnel 

Costs 

4664 2690 58% 6 Breakdown 

below 

 

Personnel cost by salary band 

Level  
Personnel 

Expenditure (R’000) 

% of personnel 

exp. to total 

personnel cost 

(R’000) 

No. of 

employees 

Average personnel 

cost per employee 

(R’000) 

Top Management 539 20% 1 539 

Senior Management 955 36% 1 955 

Professional qualified 159 6% 1 159 

Skilled  915 35% 2 458 

Semi-skilled - - - - 

Unskilled 82 3% 1 82 

TOTAL 2,650 100% 6  
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Performance Rewards  

Programme Performance rewards Personnel Expenditure 

(R’000) 

% of performance 

rewards  to total 

personnel cost (R’000) 

Top Management 0 0 0 

Senior Management 0 0 0 

Professional qualified 0 0 0 

Skilled  0 0 0 

Semi-skilled 0 0 0 

Unskilled 0 0 0 

TOTAL 0 0 0 

EPMDS policy was developed.  Performance assessments will be finalised in the 15/16 financial 

year. 

 

Training Costs  

Programme Personnel 
Expenditure 

(R’000) 

Training 
Expenditure 

(R’000) 

Training 
Expenditure 

as a % of 
Personnel 

Cost. 

No. of 
employees 

trained 

Avg training  
cost per 

employee 

KKC office 2,650 9 0.034% 1 9 

 

Employment and vacancies 

Programme 2014/2015  

No. of 

Employees 

2014/2015 

Approved Posts 

2015/2016 

No. of 

Employees 

2015/2016 

Vacancies 

% of vacancies 

Programme 2 0 1 1 0 0% 

 

Employment changes 

The Entity has an Organogram but cannot fulfil posts due to financial constraints.   

 

Reasons for staff leaving 

n/a 

 

Labour Relations: Misconduct and disciplinary action 

Nature of disciplinary Action Number  

Verbal Warning 0 

Written Warning 0 

Final Written warning 0 

Dismissal 0 
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Equity Target and Employment Equity Status   

Levels MALE 

 

 African Coloured Indian White 

 Current  Target Current  Target Current  Target Current  Target 

Top Management   1      

Senior 
Management 

 1       

Professional 
qualified 

      1  

Skilled          

Semi-skilled         

Unskilled  6       

TOTAL 0 7 1 0 0 0 1 0 

Levels FEMALE 

 

 AFRICAN COLOURED INDIAN WHITE 

 Current Target Current Target Current Target Current Target 

Top Management         

Senior 
Management 

      1  

Professional 
qualified 

 1       

Skilled  1 1    1  

Semi-skilled         

Unskilled 1 2       

TOTAL 1 4 1 0 0 0 2 0 

  

 

 

 

Levels Disabled Staff 

 

 Male  Female 

 Current Target Current Target 

Top Management 0  0  

Senior Management 0  0  

Professional qualified 0  0  

Skilled  0  0  

Semi-skilled 0  0  

Unskilled 0  0  

TOTAL 0 0 0 0 
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5.1  REPORT OF THE EXTERNAL AUDITOR 

This is the audit report as issued by the external auditor.   

Refer to page 40 – Auditors Report. 

 

5.2  ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

Statement of Responsibility for the Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 

2015. 

 

The Accounting Authority is responsible for the preparation of the Public Entity’s Annual Financial 
Statements and for the judgements made in this information. 
 
The Accounting Authority is responsible for establishing, and implementing a system of internal 
control designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the Annual 
Financial Statements. 
 
In my opinion, the financial statements fairly reflect the operations of the Public Entity for the 
financial year ended 31 March 2016. 
 
The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the AFS of the Public 
Entity.  
 
The Kalahari Kid Corporation’s Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2016 
have been audited by the external auditors and their report is presented on page 40. 
 
The Annual Financial Statements of the Public Entity set out on page 37 to page 97 have been 
approved. 
 
 

Yours faithfully, 

 

 

 

 

Dr MH Hendricks 

Accounting Authority 

Kalahari Kid Corporation 
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Accounting Authority to the Executive Authority and Parliament of the Republic of South Africa. 

1. Nature of business 

Main business and operations 

The company is engaged in the produce, slaughter and supply of goat products and operates principally in 
South Africa. 

Addresses 
Business address  
 13 Wessels Road 
 Rivonia 
 Sandton 
 2196 
Postal address  
 P O Box 988 
 Rivonia 
 2128 

2. Going concern 

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going 
concern. This basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realization 
of assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary 
course of business. 

3. Authorized and issued share capital 

There were no changes in the authorized or issued share capital of the company during the 12 months under 
review. 

4. Changes in the nature of property, plant and equipment 

There were major changes in the nature of property, plant and equipment or policy relating to the use of 
property plant and equipment took place during the year under review.  

5. Directors 

The directors of the company during the year and to the date of this report are as follows: 

 
Name 
J Weidemann 
IW Maribe 
MH Hendricks 
 

 



KALAHARI KID CORPORATION 
Report of the Auditor General  

for the year ended 31 March 2016 

 

Report of the auditor-general to the Northern Cape Provincial Legislature on Kalahari 

Kid Corporation 

Report on the financial statements 

Introduction 

1. I have audited the financial statements of the Kalahari Kid Corporation set out on pages 
47 to 97, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2016, the 
statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net assets, cash flow 
statement for the year then ended, as well as the notes, comprising a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.  

Accounting authority’s responsibility for the financial statements 

2. The Accounting authority is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of 
these financial statements in accordance with South African Standards of Generally 
Recognised Accounting Practice (SA Standards of GRAP) and the requirements of the 
Public Finance Management Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA) and 
the Companies Act of South Africa, 2008 (Act No. 71 of 2008), and for such internal 
control as the accounting authority determines is necessary to enable the preparation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditor-general’s responsibility 

3. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my 
audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. 
Those standards require that I comply with ethical requirements, and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are 
free from material misstatement. 

4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts 
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 
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5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 

a basis for my qualified audit opinion. 

Basis for qualified opinion 

Employee Benefits 

6. The Public entity did not disclose the Employee Benefits in the Annual Financial 
Statements in accordance with GRAP 25 Employee benefits for the current financial and 
prior financial period. I was not able to determine the full extent of the understatement as 
it was impracticable to do so.  

 

Employee related cost 

7. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for employee related cost as 
the entity did not maintain accurate and complete records of the contractual information 
used to determine the remuneration of employees stated at R2 785 000 in the financial 
statements. I was unable to confirm the accuracy of the remuneration of employees by 
other means. Consequently, I was not able to determine if the leave provision amounting 
to R60 000 was fairly stated. 

 

Related Parties 

8. The Public entity did not recognise and disclose the Related Party relationships and 
transactions in the current year in accordance with GRAP 20 Related Party Disclosures. 
The public entity recognised the value of the Employee Benefit Liability as a Related 
Party transaction. Consequently the Related Parties was overstated by R1 160 000. 

 

Expenditure 

9. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the restatement of the 
corresponding figures for expenditure as disclosed in note 23. A restatement was made 
by the entity however it was not disclosed in note 25; correction of error in the financial 
statements. I was unable to confirm the restatement by alternative means. 
Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any adjustment to the expenditure 
corresponding figure stated at R 2 087 000 in the financial statements was necessary. 

Irregular expenditure 

10. The public entity did not record all irregular expenditure incurred in the current year that 
was in excess of the approved budget as required by section 53.of the PFMA. The entity 
exceeded the allocated budget by R159 167.  This was due to the fact that the entity did 
not maintain adequate systems to collate and account for irregular expenditure. 
Consequently, Unauthorised expenditure was overstated with R 135000 in the Annual 
Financial Statements. 
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Qualified opinion 

11. In my opinion, except for the possible effects of the matters described in the basis for 
qualified opinion paragraphs, the financial statements present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of Kalahari Kid Corporation as at 31 March 2016 and its 
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with the 
SA Standards of GRAP and the requirements of the Public Finance Management Act of 
South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA) and the Companies Act of South Africa, 
2008 (Act No. 71 of 2008) 

Emphasis of Matter  

12. I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

Restatement of corresponding figures 

13. As disclosed in note 25 to the financial statements, the corresponding figures for 
31 March 2015 have been restated as a result of an error discovered during the year 
ended 31 March 2016 in the financial statements of the public entity. 

Material losses 

14. The entity suffered a significant losses amounting to R56 000 as a result of theft and 
loss of the goats on the farm. 

Financial sustainability 

15. The statement of financial performance to the financial statements indicates that the 
entity incurred a net loss of R26 000 and an Inventory write down to net-realisable value 
of R5 000 during the year ended 31 March 2016. The entity relies on transfer payments 
from the Department of Agriculture, Land Reform and Rural Development, constituting 
90% of revenue. The operating expenditure of R4 664 000 is excessive in relation to the 
low level of sales of R250 000, and income generating assets of R634 000. These 
conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that the entity may not be able 
to sustain itself financially and may pose a risk that the public entity may not operate as a 
going concern in the future. 

 

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements 

 

16. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) and 
the general notice issued in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report findings on the 
reported performance information against predetermined objectives of selected 
objectives presented in the annual performance report, compliance with legislation and 
internal control. The objective of my tests was to identify reportable findings as described 
under each subheading but not to gather evidence to express assurance on these 
matters. Accordingly, I do not express an opinion or conclusion on these matters. 
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Predetermined objectives 

17. I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the usefulness and reliability of the 
reported performance information of the following selected objectives presented in the 
annual performance report of the public entity for the year ended 31 March 2016: 

 Objective 2: Production and Training on pages 22 

 Objective 3: Processing and Marketing on pages 23 
 

18. I evaluated the usefulness of the reported performance information to determine 
whether it was presented in accordance with the National Treasury’s annual reporting 
principles and whether the reported performance was consistent with the planned 
objectives. I further performed tests to determine whether indicators and targets were 
well defined, verifiable, specific, measurable, time bound and relevant, as required by 
the National Treasury’s Framework for managing programme performance information 
(FMPPI). 

19. I assessed the reliability of the reported performance information to determine whether it 
was valid, accurate and complete. 

20. The material findings in respect of the selected objectives are as follows: 

Programme 2: Production and Training 

Usefulness of reported performance information 

21. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to support the reasons 
provided for the variance between planned targets and actual achievements. 

  
22. Treasury Regulation 30.1.3(g) requires the strategic plan to form the basis for the annual 

report, therefore requiring consistency of objectives, indicators and targets between 
planning and reporting documents. A total of 100% reported objectives were not 
consistent with those in the approved strategic plan. 

 
23. The FMPPI requires that performance targets should be specific in clearly identifying the 

nature and required level of performance and measurable. It also requires that 
performance indicators should be well defined by having clear definitions so that data 
can be collected consistently and is easy to understand and use. Furthermore the 
processes and systems that produced the indicator should be verifiable. A total of 67% 
targets were not specific, measurable well defined and verifiable. 

 
24. A total of 83% indicators did not relate logically and directly to an aspect of the auditee’s 

mandate and the realization of strategic goals and objectives as per the five year 
strategic plan as required by the FMPPI. 

Reliability of reported performance information 

25. The FMPPI requires auditees to have appropriate systems to collect, collate, verify and 
store performance information to ensure reliable reporting of actual achievements  
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against planned objectives, indicators and targets. The reported performance information 
was not reliable when compared to the source information or evidence provided. 

Programme 3: Processing and Market 

Usefulness of reported performance information 

 
26. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to support the reasons 

provided for the variance between planned targets and actual achievements.  
  
27. Treasury Regulation 30.1.3(g) requires the strategic plan to form the basis for the annual 

report, therefore requiring consistency of objectives, indicators and targets between 
planning and reporting documents. A total of 100% reported objectives were not 
consistent with those in the approved strategic plan.  

 
28. The FMPPI requires that performance targets should be specific in clearly identifying the 

nature and required level of performance and measurable. It also requires that 
performance indicators should be well defined by having clear definitions so that data 
can be collected consistently and is easy to understand and use. Furthermore the 
processes and systems that produced the indicator should be verifiable. A total of 100% 
targets were not measurable, well defined and verifiable.  

 

Reliability of reported performance information 

 
29. The FMPPI requires auditees to have appropriate systems to collect, collate, verify and 

store performance information to ensure reliable reporting of actual achievements 
against planned objectives, indicators and targets. The reported performance information 
was not reliable when compared to the source information or evidence provided. 

 
Additional Matter 

Achievement of planned targets 

30. Refer to the annual performance report on page(s) 20 to 23 for information on the 
achievement of planned targets for the year. This information should be considered in 
the context of the adverse conclusions expressed on the usefulness and reliability of the 
reported performance information in paragraphs 4 to 9 of this report. 

Compliance with legislation 

31. I performed procedures to obtain evidence that the Public entity had complied with 
applicable legislation regarding financial matters, financial management and other 
related matters. My material findings on compliance with specific matters in key 
legislation, as set out in the general notice issued in terms of the PAA, are as follows: 
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Financial statements, performance and annual reports 

32. The financial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in accordance with the 
prescribed financial reporting framework as required by section 55(1)(a) of the Public 
Finance Management Act and section 29(1)(a) of the Companies Act. Material 
misstatements identified by the auditors in the submitted financial statements were not 
adequately corrected and the supporting records could not be provided subsequently, 
which resulted in the financial statements receiving a qualified audit opinion. 

 

Procurement and contract management 

33. Contracts were awarded to bidders based on preference points that were not calculated 
in accordance with the requirements of the Preferential Procurement Policy Framework 
Act and its regulations. 

Expenditure management 

34. The accounting authority did not take effective steps to prevent irregular and fruitless 
and wasteful expenditure, as required by section 51(1)(b)(ii) of the Public Finance 
Management Act.  

Consequence management 

35. Investigations were not conducted into all allegations of financial misconduct committed 
by officials, as required by Treasury Regulation 33.1.1. 

Internal control 

36. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, annual 
performance report and compliance with legislation. The matters reported below are 
limited to the significant internal control deficiencies that resulted in the basis for the 
qualified opinion, the findings on the annual of performance report and the findings on 
compliance with legislation] included in this report. 

Leadership 

37. The leadership did not regularly monitor compliance with laws and regulations and 
internally designed policies and procedures. As a result, significant non-compliance 
issues were noted. Many officials working on the farms were employed by the entity, 
therefore not under the direct control and supervision of the entity, resulting in difficulties 
in implementing controls. 

38. The entity developed a plan to address internal and external audit findings, but the 
appropriate level of management did not timeously monitor adherence. 
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Financial and performance management 

39. Manual and automated controls were not designed to ensure that the transactions 
recorded in the financial records had occurred and authorised by designated official, 
and that all the transactions were completely and accurately processed.  

40. The financial statements were subject to material corrections resulting from the audit, 
which can be attributed to officials not fully implementing the Generally Recognised 
Accounting Practice. 

41. Non-compliance with legislation could have been prevented had compliance been 
properly reviewed and monitored. 

 

Governance 

42. The accounting authority did not appoint an internal audit unit or an audit committee 
during the current financial year due to financial constraints, as they depend external 
funding. 

 

 

Auditor-General 

Kimberley 

29 July 2016 
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  Note 2016 2015 

    R'000 R'000 

ASSETS       

Current assets   1,100 
            

4,009  

Cash and cash equivalents 
 
1 1,034 

            
3,774  

Trade and other receivables from exchange 
transactions 

2 

9                 35  

Other receivables from non-exchange transactions 3 41 41                

VAT receivable 4 9               138  

Prepayments 5 8 21 

        

Non-current assets 
  

4,270 
            

2,372  

Property ,Plant and Equipment 7 3,577 2,294 

Intangible Assets 8 2 - 

Biological Assets 9 690 78 

       

TOTAL ASSETS   5,370 
            

6,381  

        

LIABILITIES       

Current liabilities   952 3,376              

Trade and other payables from exchange transactions 10 36 230 

Current provisions 12 695 670 
Current portion of unspent conditional grants and 
receipts 

13 
220 2,474 

Current portion of finance lease liability 14 1 2 

        

Non-current liabilities   4                 32  

Finance lease liability 
 

14 - 
                  

19  

Operating Lease Liability  4                 13  

       

TOTAL LIABILITIES   957             3,409              

        

Net assets 
  

4,413 
            

2,973  

Accumulated Surplus/ (Deficit) 
 

4,413 
            

2,973  

        

TOTAL NET ASSETS AND LIABILITIES   5,370             6,382               
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  Note 2016 2015 

    R'000 R'000 

REVENUE        

Revenue from non-exchange transactions   5,241 
            

4,878  

Government grants and subsidies 15 5,241 
            

4,878  

       

Revenue from exchange transactions   958               997  

Sale of Goods & Rendering of Services 16 250               969  

Other income 17 699                 7  

Interest Earned- External Investments 18 9 21 

       

TOTAL REVENUE  6,199             5,875             

       
EXPENSES 
      

Employee related costs 31 -2,785 -2,388 

Repairs and maintenance 19 -25 -34 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 20 -405 -101 

Finance costs 22 -1 -16 

General expenses 23 -1,458 -2,087 

Contracted Services 21 - -56 

Bad debts  - -6 

TOTAL EXPENSES  -4,673 -4,687 

       

OTHER GAINS / (LOSSES)                -86  -174               

 
     

Impairment (Loss)/Reversal of impairment loss  -26                      -174 

Loss on fair value adjustment  -56 - 

Inventories: Write-down   -5 - 

       

CONTINUING OPERATIONS SURPLUS/ (DEFICIT) 
BEFORE TAX  1,440               1,013               

TAXATION                      -                     -  

CONTINUING OPERATIONS SURPLUS/ (DEFICIT) 
AFTER TAX  1,440              1,013               

       

TOTAL SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) FOR THE PERIOD NET 
OF TAX  1,440 

              
1,013  

      

SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) FOR THE PERIOD NET OF 
TAX   1,440 

              
1,013  

Attributable to:       

      Owners of the controlling entity   1,440               1,013               

      Minority interest       



KALAHARI KID CORPORATION 
Statement of Changes in Net Assets  
for the year ended 31 March 2016 

 

 

 
Attributable To Owners Of The Controlling Entity 

 

 

Ordinary 
Shares 

Preference 
Shares 

Revaluation 
Reserve 

Contributed 
Capital 

Translation 
Reserve 

Other 
reserves 

Accumulated 
Surplus/(Deficit) 

Total Net 
Assets 

 
R '000 R '000 R '000 R '000 R '000 R '000 R '000 R '000 

BALANCE AT 31 MARCH 2014 0 - - - - - 1,962 1,962 

         Changes in accounting policy 
        

         BALANCE AT 1 APRIL 2014 - - - - - - 1,962 1,962 

         Surplus / (Deficit) for the period as per Statement of Financial Performance 
      

1,013 1,013 

Transfer to/from accumulated surplus/(deficit) 
      

19 19 

BALANCE AT 31 MARCH 2015 - - - - - - 2,994 2,994 

         

       
-21 -21 

BALANCE AT 1 APRIL 2015 - - - - - - 2,973 2,973 

         Surplus / (Deficit) for the period as per Statement of Financial Performance 
      

1,440 1,440 

Transfers to / from accumulated surplus/(deficit) 

      
          

         BALANCE AT 31 MARCH 2016 - - - - - - 4,413 4,413 
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Note 2016 2015 

  
R '000 R '000 

Cash flows from operating activities       

Receipts   3,448             4,352  

Transfers and Subsidies   2,550             2,550  

Sale of goods and rendering of services 
 

245               974  

Other Operating Revenue   -                   7  

Grants   502               800  

Interest, Dividends and Rent on land   9                 21  

Other Receipts   142                    -  

       

Payments   -3,553           -3,921  

Compensation of Employees   -2,690    - 2,391  

Goods and Services   -845          - 1,480  

Interest and Rent on land   -1                -16  

Other payments   -17                -34  

       

Net cash flows from operating activities 6 -105               431  

         

Cash flows from investing activities   -2,404           -2,726  

Purchase of assets   -1,650          - 2,053 

Proceeds from sale of assets  -5 - 

Purchase of other intangible   -3 - 

Loan repayments received from associates / other economic 
entities   -             - 

Additional movements   -746         -673 

       

Net cash flows from investing activities.   -2,404           -2,726  

       

Cash flows from financing activities   -231             1,491  

Repayment of borrowings   -202             1,528  

Finance lease payments   -29                -37  

       

Net cash flows from financing activities   -231             1,491  

       

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents -2,740 -804 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year   3,774             4,578  
       

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1 1,034             3,774  
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   2016 2015      

      R'000 R'000           

1 Cash and Cash Equivalents                 

  Cash and cash equivalents consist of the following:                 

  Cash on hand   1                1            

  Cash at bank   1,033        3,773            

  Total Cash and cash Equivalents   1,034        3,774            

                   

                    

2 Trade and Other Receivables from Exchange Transactions                  

  

   Gross 
Balances  

  Provision for 
Doubtful 

Debts   

 Net 
Balance  

        

  

    R'000 R'000 R'000           

  Other Trade Receivables              9                  -               9            

  
Total Trade & Other Receivables From Exchange 
Transactions As At 31 March 2016 

             9                  -               9          

  

                    

  

   Gross 
Balances  

 Provision for 
Doubtful 

Debts  

 Net 
Balance  

        

  

    R'000 R'000 R'000           

  Recoveries of Staff Expenses                  -                  -                  -            

  Other Trade Receivables            35                  -             35            

  
Total Trade & Other Receivables From Exchange 
Transactions As At 31 March 2015 

           35                  -             35          
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      2016 2015           

  
Ageing of Trade & Other Receivables from Exchange 
Transactions (Net of Provision For Doubtful Debts) 

  R'000 R'000         

  

  Current (0 – 30 days)   9             35            

  31 - 60 Days    - -            

  61 - 90 Days   - -            

  91 - 120 Days   - -            

  121 + Days   - -          

  Total    9             35        

                                                  

                    

                    

  Summary of Debtors by Classification BALANCE AS AT 31 MARCH 2016       

          

  

  Recoveries 
of Staff 

Expenses 

Other Trade 
Receivables 

Employee 
Advances 

Provincial 
Government 

National 
Government 

    

  

    R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000       

  Current (0 – 30 days)                9              

  31 - 60 Days     -             

  61 - 90 Days    -             

  91 - 120 Days    -             

  121 - 365 Days    -             

       -             

  Total Debtors before Provision For Doubtful Debts                  -              9                  -                   -                 -        

  Less: Provision for doubtful debts                   -                  -                  -                   -                 -        

  Total Debtors by Classification As At 31 March 2016                  -              9                  -                   -                 -        
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    BALANCE AS AT 31 MARCH 2015       

          

  

  Recoveries 
of Staff 

Expenses 

Other Trade 
Receivables 

Employee 
Advances 

Provincial 
Government 

National 
Government 

    

  

    R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000       

  Current (0 – 30 days)                  35              

  31 - 60 Days    -                        

  61 - 90 Days   -                             

  91 - 120 Days    -             

  121 - 365 Days    -             

       -             

  Total Debtors before Provision For Doubtful Debts                  -            35                  -                   -                 -        

  Less: Provision for doubtful debts                   -                  -                  -                   -                 -            

  Total Debtors by Classification As At 31 March 2015                  -            35                  -                   -                 -        

                    

                    

  Reconciliation of the doubtful debt provision                 

  Balance at end of year                   -                  -            

                    

3 Other Receivables from Non-Exchange Transactions                 

  Other debtors               41               41            

  Total Other Debtors               41               41            

                    

  
  
 
 

              

  

4 VAT Receivable                 

  VAT receivable             9  138                            
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5 Prepayments                 

  Prepaid expenses               8                 21           

                    

6 Cash flows from operating activities         

            

  Surplus/(deficit) for the year from:         

  Continuing operations 
 

1,440     1,013    

  Amortisation 
 

1            2    

  Depreciation 
 

404       101    

  Fair value adjustments 
 

56      21    

  Increase/(decrease) in provisions 
 

25           588    

 Finance costs  2               -  

  Interest received-Held-to-maturity investments 
 

- -    

  Impairment loss / (reversal of impairment loss) 
 

25       124   

  
 
Other non-cash item 

 
703       -59  

 
  

  
 
Operating surplus before working capital changes: 

 

2,656    1,790    

  (Increase)/decrease in inventories 
 

         

  (Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables 
 

-186      -160    

  (Increase)/decrease in VAT receivable 
 

  -129          138    

  Increase/(decrease) in conditional grants and receipts 
 

-2,254       -1,528    

  Increase/(decrease) in consumer deposits 
 

-          -    

  Increase/(Decrease) in deferred income 
 

-             -    

  Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 
 

-214            191    

  Increase/(decrease) in VAT payable 
 

-          -17    

  Movements in payments made and received in advance 
 

-13           17    

  Other working capital movements 
 

     35          -    

  Net cash flows from operating activities 

 

-105       431    
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7 Property, Plant and Equipment                        

  Reconciliation of Carrying Value                       

      2016       2015           

    

Cost 
Accumulated 

Depreciation & 
Impairment 

Carrying 
Value 

  Cost 
Accumulated 

Depreciation & 
Impairment 

Carrying 
Value 

  

      

    R'000 R'000 R'000   R'000 R'000 R'000         

 Infrastructure 3,469 -301 3,168  - - -     

  Capital Work in Progress 165 - 165  2,044 - 2,044         

  Furniture & Fittings 94 -87 6  93 -81 12         

 Plant , Machinery & Equipment 12             -5 7  - - -     

  Office Equipment 91             -90 0  91 -76 14         

  Computer Equipment 36 -18 18  24 -14 10         

  Other Assets 457 -245 212  385 -172 213         

  Total, 4,323 -746 3,577  2,636 -342 2,294         

 
7.1 

 
Reconciliation of Property, Plant and Equipment – 2016                   

    

Carrying 
Value 

Opening 
Balance 

Additions Disposals Transfers Depreciation Impairment Revaluation 
Discontinued 
Operations 

Prior 
Year 

Errors 

Carrying 
Value 

Closing 
Balance 

  

    R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000   

 Infrastructure - 3,469 - - -301  - - - 3,168  

  Capital Work in Progress 2,044                  598  - -2,477 -   - - - 165   

  Furniture & Fittings 
             
12  -  -  - -6         6   

 Plant, Machinery & Equipment - 12 - - -5     7  

  Office Equipment 
             
15 -  -  - -14         1   

  Computer Equipment 
             
10  12 -   - -4         18   

  Other Assets 213 72  -  - -73         212   

  Total 
          
2,294 4,163 

                
-  -2,477 -404                 -  

                
-             -  

           
-  3,577   
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7.2 Reconciliation of Property, Plant and 
Equipment—2015                   

    

Carrying 
Value 

Opening 
Balance 

Additions Disposals Transfers Depreciation Impairment Revaluation 
Discontinued 
Operations 

Prior 
Year 

Errors 

Carrying 
Value 

Closing 
Balance   

    R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000   

 Capital Work In Progress -         2,044   -     2,044  

  Furniture & Fittings 
               

16                 2 
 

   -6                   
 

12   

  Office Equipment 
             

36    
 

             -21                   15   

  Computer Equipment 10 3     -3       
 

        
10    

  Other Assets 
             

280                 4 
 

             -71       
 

213   

  Total 
          

343            2,053 
                

-             -           -101                  -  
                

-             -            
      

2,294    

                                        

 
        

8.  Intangible Assets                     

                      

Reconciliation of Carrying Value                     

                      

    2016       2015         

  Cost Accumulated 
Amortisation & 

Impairment 

Carrying Value   Cost Accumulated Amortisation & 
Impairment 

Carrying Value       

  R'000 R'000 R'000   R'000 R'000 R'000       

 
Computer Software 

             
23  

 
-21  

  
2 

   
20 

 
-20 

 
- 

      

 
Total 

             
23  

           
 -21  

               
2  

   
20 

 
-20 

 
- 
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8.1 Reconciliation of Intangible Assets – 
2016 

                

                      

  Carrying 
Value 

Opening 
Balance 

Additions Disposals Transfers Amortisation Impairment Revaluation Internally 
Developed  

Discontinued 
Operations 

Carrying 
Value 

Closing 
Balance 

  R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 

 
Computer Software 

               
-  

  
       3 

     
-1 

                          
2 

 
Total 

 
-                 

               
        3  

                
-  

                
-  

 
-1 

                
 -  

                
-  

                
-  

               
  -  

                 
2 

  
 

                                 

    

  

              

8.2 Reconciliation of Intangible Assets – 
2015 

                

                      

  Carrying 
Value 

Opening 
Balance 

Additions Disposals Transfers Amortisation Impairment Revaluation Internally 
Developed  

Discontinued 
Operations 

Carrying 
Value 

Closing 
Balance 

  R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 

 
Computer Software 

 
2 

       
-2 

 
 

       
- 

 
Total 

 
2 

                -                  
-  

                
-  

 
-2 

 
 

                
-  

                
-  

 
- 

 
- 
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 9. Biological Assets                      

    Reconciliation of Carrying Value                     

                          

        2016      2015         

     Cost Accumulated 
Depreciation 

and 
Impairment 

Carrying Value  Cost Accumulated 
Depreciation and 

Impairment 

Carrying Value       

     R'000 R'000 R'000  R'000 R'000 R'000       

     
Other Assets 

 
2,915 

 
-2,225 

 
690 

  
2,278 

 
-2,199 

 
78 

      

     
Total 

 
2,915 

 
-2,225 

 
       690 

  
2,278 

 
-2,199 

 
      78 

      

   
9.1 

 
Reconciliation of Biological Assets – 
2016 

    

 

            

                          

      Carrying 
Value 

Opening 
Balance 

Purchases Decrease due 
to 

harvest/sales 

Gains/losses 
from changes in 
fair value less 

estimated point 
of sales costs. 

Depreciation Impairment 
loss / 

Reversal of 
impairment 

loss 

Other 
movements 

Transfers Discontinued 
Operations 

Carrying Value 
Closing Balance 

      R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 

     
Other Assets 

 
78 

 
746 

 
-129 

 
- 

 
- 

 
-26 

 
- 

 
94 

 
-73 

 
690 

    Total 78 746 -129 - 
 

- -26 - 94 -73 690 
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    9.2 Reconciliation of Biological Assets – 
2015 

                

                          

      Carrying 
Value 

Opening 
Balance 

Purchases Decrease due 
to 

harvest/sales 

Gains/losses 
from 

changes in 
fair value 

less 
estimated 
point of 

sales costs. 

Depreciation Impairment 
loss / 

Reversal of 
impairment 

loss 

Other 
movements 

Transfers Discontinued 
Operations 

Carrying 
Value 

Closing 
Balance 

      R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 

    Other Assets           
968  

 
673 

         
-765  

 
-674 

   
-124 

                 
78  

    Total           
968  

 
673 

  
      -765  

 
-674 

                  
-124 

                
-  

                
-  

                -             
78  

 

 

10 Trade and Other Payables from Exchange Transactions                  

 Trade Creditors  1 -       

  Other creditors    35                       230              

  Total creditors   36                         230              

                      

11 VAT Payable                   

  VAT payable                    -               17              
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12 Current Provisions                   

                     

12.1 Reconciliation of Movement in Current Provisions – 2016                 
    Performanc

e Bonus 
Provision 
for Leave 

Pay 

Other Provisions Current 
Portion 
of Other 
Non-
Current 
Provisio
ns 

TOTAL         

    R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000         

  Opening Balance  30 640 - 670         

  Provisions Raised  60 634 - 694         

  Unused Amounts Reversed  -30 -640 - -670         

  Closing Balance  60 634 - 694         

12.2  
 
Reconciliation of Movement in Current Provisions – 2015 

                

    Performanc
e Bonus 

Provision 
for Leave 

Pay 

Other Provisions Current Portion of 
Other Non-

Current 
Provisions 

TOTAL         

    R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000         
  Opening Balance - 57 26 - 83         

  Provisions Raised - 30 640 - 690         

  Unused Amounts Reversed    - -57             -26 -     -83        

  Closing Balance    - 30             640 -     670        
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13 Unspent Conditional Grants and Receipts                  

  Non-current unspent conditional grants and receipts   -                                                    -             

                    

  Current portion of unspent conditional grants and receipts 220        2,474              

 
14 

 
Finance Lease Liability 

                  

  2016 Minimum Lease 
Payment 

Future Finance Charges Present 
Value of 

Minimum 
Lease 

Payments 

           

  Amounts payable under finance leases R'000 R'000 R'000            

  Within one year 1 - 1            

  Within two to five years - - -          

  Later than five years -  -          

   1 - -          

  Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 months (current 
portion) 

-1  -          

                  -                                       -          

                 
  2015  Minimum Lease Payment  Future Finance 

Charges 
Present Value of 
Minimum Lease 

Payments 

            

  Amounts payable under finance leases R'000 R'000 R'000             

                      

  Within one year              19    19             

  Within two to five years              2    2           

  Later than five years  -   -           

                 21  - 21           

  Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 months (current 
portion) 

           -2   -2          

                 19  - 19          
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15 Government Grants and Subsidies                    

                 
      Balance 

unspent at 
beginning of 

year 

Current year receipts Conditions 
met - 

transferred 
to revenue 

Conditi
ons still 

to be 
met - 

remain 
liabilitie

s 

        

  Reconciliation of Movement in Grant – 2016                   

      R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000         

  Other Government Grants and Subsidies          2,474         2,987         5,241         
220  

        

                      

  Total Government Grant and Subsidies           2,474        2,987         5,241         
220  

        

                      
  Reconciliation of Movement in Grant – 2015   Balance 

unspent at 
beginning of 

year 

Current year receipts Condition
s met - 
transferre
d to 
revenue 

Conditions 
still to be 

met - 
remain 

liabilities 

        

      R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000         

  Other Government Grants and Subsidies          4,002  3,350        
4,878  

       
2,474  

        

                     

  Total Government Grant and Subsidies           4,002  3,350        
4,878  

       
2,474  
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16 Revenue from Exchange Transactions - Sale of goods and services               

      R'000 R'000          

                 

  Revenue from Exchange Transactions - Sale of goods and services 250 969          

                

           17              
Other 
Income  

          

 Other income 696 -       

  Revenue from Exchange Transactions - Sundry income                   3 7             

                 

  Total Other Income                 699 7             

                                       

18.    
Interest Earned 

   
 
 
 

            

  Bank                           9                       21            

                             9                      21            

                  

19. Repairs and Maintenance                

                   

  Repairs and Maintenance during the year                  25               34            

 
  

                 

20 Depreciation and Amortisation Expense                 

                   

  Property, plant and equipment                 404 99            

  Intangible assets   1 2            

  Total Depreciation and Amortisation                  405 101            

              

 21            Contracted Services                   -                56       

  
 
 

        -      56       

../../AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/phoggy/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/RUVI1BJQ/Book1.xls#RANGE!C20
../../AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/phoggy/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/RUVI1BJQ/Book1.xls#RANGE!C31
../../AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/phoggy/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/RUVI1BJQ/Book1.xls#RANGE!C32


KALAHARI KID CORPORATION 
Notes to Financial Statements  

for the year ended 31 March 2016 

 

 

22 Finance Costs                 

  Interest Charged on Overdue Trade and other payables - 12             

  Finance leases   1 4             

  Total Finance Costs   1 16             

    
 

                  

                  

23 General Expenses                   

                      

  Included in general expenses are the following:                   

  Advertising                  14 1             

  Admin fees                   -                 0              

  Audit fees             604           612              

  Bank charges                  8                 8              

  Cleaning                  0                  -              

  Consumables  87 31            

  Cost of sales             141           827              

  Electricity   42                38              

  Fuel and oil   - -             

  Insurance                10               11              

 Levies paid  - 74       

 Licence Fees  21 23       

  Parking   26              22              

  Postage                  3                 3              

  Printing and stationery   31 22             

  Professional fees                   -  -             

  Rental of buildings             142            142              

  Rental of Office Equipment   6 -             

  Subscription & publication                -                 -              

  Telephone cost                62  39             

  Training                  9  2                             

  Transport claims                38 17             

  Travel and subsistence – Local              
 

             154              
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113 

 Travel and Subsistence-Foreign  23 -       

  Other                77                 62              

             1,458        2,087              

        

        

24 Change in Accounting Estimate          

  Biological Assets     690 -   

  Finance Lease liability                     
-  

            -    

    
 
 

    690                             -    

              

25 Correction of Error          

  Depreciation     -14            -11    

  Impairment     -33              -3    

 Grant Income   157 -  

 Cost of Sales   -174 -  

  Net effect on surplus/(deficit) for the year     -64            -14    

              

  Accruals                     
2  

1   

  Inventory     50                
-  

 
  

  Net effect on Statement of Financial Position                 
52  

              1    

              

  Accumulated Surplus/(Deficit)                 -                 -    

  Net Effect on Statement of changes in Net Assets 
 
 
 
 

                -                 -   
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26 Fruitless & Wasteful Expenditure and Irregular Expenditure           

              

26.1 Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure           

              

  Reconciliation of fruitless and wasteful expenditure           

  Opening balance -     22             11    

     Fruitless and wasteful expenditure current year     3             22    

     Condoned or written off by relevant authority     -22            -11    

     Fruitless and wasteful expenditure closing balance     3             22    

 
 
 
 

26.2 

Irregular Expenditure           

              
  Reconciliation of irregular expenditure           

  Opening balance     692           472    

     Irregular expenditure current year     193           220    

     Irregular expenditure awaiting condonement     885           692   

      

      27.         Unauthorised Expenditure    
 

  

                                                                             
Overtime Payments                                                                                           
Farm Expenses 

            8 
       127 

                               

                     
       135 

   -  

28. Capital Commitments          

             

  Commitments in respect of capital expenditure           

              

  - Approved and contracted for               1,765    

  Infrastructure     -          1,765    

  Other          
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  - Approved but not yet contracted for                 

  Infrastructure     -            

  Other           

              

  Total            -         1,765    

              

  This expenditure will be financed from:           

  - External Loans           

  - Government Grants     -         1,765    

  - Own resources           

        -              1,765    

 
29 
 
 

 
Operating leases 

         

  At the reporting date the entity has outstanding commitments 
under operating leases which fall due as follows: 

          

  Operating lease arrangements           

  Lessee           

  At the reporting date the entity had outstanding commitments 
under non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows: 

          

  Up to 1 year     475 218   

  1 to 5 years        1,392 324   

  More than 5 years     1,028 -   

    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   2,895 542   
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30 Related Parties          

  Related party balances                   
6,725    

       
 -  

  

  Departments                
4,027  

 
-         

  

 Entities   1,160 -  

 Directors and key Management   1,538 -  

   
Related party transactions 

   
6,725 

 
6,601 

 

  Departments           4,027         4,294    

 Entities   1,160 938  

  Directors and key management   1,538 1,369  

       

30.1        Related Parties     
        Breakdown 

      

       

       Department 4,027 

3,052 
 4,294 

3,350 
  

              Grants   

 Officials    925  894   

 Other      50                               50   

 
 
     
 
 
 
 

          
               Entities 

               Liberty                                                                                                                                        1,160                                                      938                                              
 
 
 
               Key Management                                                                                                                                   

                                                                                                                                        
               Senior Management                                                                                                                 1, 538                                                   1,369                    
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         31.  Employee Related Costs  

                  Salaries- Employees- UIF, Pensions and Medical 
Aid 

  
  895 

        
       899 

Salaries- Employees- Salaries and Wages  1,178        814    

  Salaries- Employees- Performance Bonus       128 112  

  Salaries- Overtime payments    8 26  

  Salaries- Other Employee Related costs   37 36  

  Salaries- Accounting Authority- Basic Salary        532 495  

  Salaries- Accounting Authority- UIF   2 2  

  Salaries-Accounting Authority- Other non- pensionable 
allowances 

  5 5  

 Total   2,785 2,388  

  
 
 

     

32. Risk Management           

              

32.1 Financial Assets carried at Amortised Cost           

                         2016  2015     

                         R'000  R'000     

  Cash and cash equivalents   1,034 3,774     

  Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions   9 35     

  Other current financial assets   - 200     

  Other non-current financial assets   58 2,422     

 
      32.2 

 
Liquidity risk 

          

              

  The entity’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The entity manages liquidity risk through 
an ongoing review of future commitments and credit facilities. 

        

  Cash flow forecasts are prepared and adequate utilised borrowing facilities are monitored.         

  The table below analyses the entity’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the 
Statement of Financial Position to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual 
undiscounted cash flows.  
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  2016  Not later than one month Later than one 
month and not 

later than three 
months 

Later than three 
months and not later 

than one year 

 
Later 

than 

one 

year 

and 

not 

later 

than 

five 

years 

  Gross finance lease obligations  2 6 11 - 

  Borrowings      

  Trade and other payables  27    
  Bank overdraft      

  Operating lease  14 42 168  

         

  2015 
 
 
 

 Not later than one month Later than one 
month and not 
later than three 
months 

Later than three 
months and not 
later than one year 

Later 
than one 
year and 
not later 
than five 
years 

  Gross finance lease obligations  2 6 17 29 

  Borrowings      

  Trade and other payables  230 -   

  Bank overdraft      

  Operating Lease  14 42 168 224 

        
 

      

33.   Financial Sustainability 

The Entity still relies on transfer payments from the mother department.  These transfers will be continuing up until the Entity is fully   sustainable and can 

generate its own income. 
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34.   Events after the reporting date 

Adjusting Entries 

The Entity revisited the fair values of the Biological Assets. 

Non- Adjusting Entries 

The Entity claimed an amount of R 127 268.12 from the department, subsequent to the amount of R502 637.49 which was paid during the year under review. 

The amount has not been recorded as a receivable until the department acknowledges the Debt. 

 

35. Risk Management         
  

              

  

Risks associated with the financial instruments of the public entities included in this consolidation are 
managed on an individual entity level in line with the requirements of the PFMA. In this note we describe 
the general high-level practices employed by entities in managing the risks that they are exposed to as a 
result of their financial instrument holdings. 

      

  

              

  Maximum credit risk exposure         
  

  

The public entities included in this consolidation are exposed to credit risk mainly as a result of holding 
cash equivalents, long term receivables, finance lease receivables and trade receivables. To manage 
the credit risk that the entities are exposed as a result of holding these classes of financial assets the 
following steps are generally taken. The entity only deposits cash with major banks with high quality 
credit standing and limits exposure to any one counter-party. 

        

              

  A. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS           
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Public entities bank with major banks with high credit standing. Furthermore, the cash holdings with 
banks are spread amongst a variety of banks to reduce the concentration of their credit risk exposure. 
The minimum counterparty credit rating for placing deposits and investing in government bonds is 'A' by 
Standard & Poor's or its Moody's or Fitch's rating equivalents, while the minimum rating for investments in corporate 
bonds is 'AA-'. The rating of certain investment securities were below 'A' at year-end due to 
downgrading of instruments or institutions by the rating agencies and due to the tightening of investment 
guidelines by the Bank, which resulted in passive breaches on some of the financial assets in the Bank's 
portfolios. 

      

  

              

  B. TRADE RECEIVABLES           

  

Trade receivables comprise a widespread customer base. Management evaluates credit risk relating to 
customers on an ongoing basis. If customers are independently rated, these ratings are used. 
Otherwise, if there is no independent rating, risk control assesses the credit quality of the customer, 
taking into account its financial position, past experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set 
based on internal or external ratings in accordance with limits set by the individual boards of directors of 
each of the public entities. The utilisation of credit limits is regularly monitored. Credit guarantee 
insurance is purchased when deemed appropriate. 

      

  

              

            

1  BASIS OF PREPARATION  
 
These annual financial statements were prepared in accordance with Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP), as issued by the Accounting Standards Board in accordance with 
Section 91(1) of the Public Finance Management Act, (Act No 1 of 1999). [PFMA] 

    

The annual financial statements were prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and incorporate the historical cost conventions as the basis of measurement, except where specified otherwise. 
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In the absence of an issued and effective Standard of GRAP, accounting policies for material transactions, events or conditions were developed in accordance with paragraphs 8, 10 and 11 of GRAP 3 
as read with Directive 5.  

    

Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses were not offset, except where offsetting is either required or permitted by a Standard of GRAP.  

    

The principal accounting policies, applied in the preparation of these annual financial statements, are set out below. These accounting policies are consistent with those applied in the preparation of 
the prior year annual financial statements, unless specified otherwise. Details of any changes in the accounting policies are   provided in note 27  “Changes in accounting policies”. 

    PRESENTATION CURRENCY 
  

These annual financial statements are presented in South African Rand, which is the functional currency of the entity. 

    GOING CONCERN ASSUMPTION 
  

These annual financial statements were prepared based on the expectation that the entity will continue to operate as a going concern for at least the next 12 months. 

 

 
 

  COMPARATIVE INFORMATION 
  Current year comparatives (Budget) 
  

Budget information in accordance with GRAP 1 and 24, has been provided in a separate disclosure note to these annual financial statements. 
 

Prior year comparatives 
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When the presentation or classification of items in the annual financial statements is amended, prior period comparative amounts are also reclassified and restated, unless such comparative 
reclassification and / or restatement is not required by a Standard of GRAP. The nature and reason for such reclassifications and restatements are also disclosed. 

    

Where material accounting errors, which relate to prior periods, have been identified in the current year, the correction is made retrospectively as far as is practicable and the prior year 
comparatives are restated accordingly. Where there has been a change in accounting policy in the current year, the adjustment is made retrospectively as far as is practicable and the prior year 
comparatives are restated accordingly. 

    

The presentation and classification of items in the current year is consistent with prior periods. 

    

STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 

    The following Standards of GRAP and / or amendments thereto have been issued by the Accounting Standards Board, but will only become effective in future periods or have not been given an 
effective date by the Minister of Finance. The entity has not early-adopted any of these new Standards or amendments thereto, but has referred to them for guidance in the development of 
accounting policies in accordance with GRAP 3 as read with Directive 5:  
 
 

    Standard number Standard name Effective date (if 
applicable) 

   Preface to Interpretations of the 
Standards of GRAP 

No effective date 
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IGRAP7 The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, 
Minimum Funding Requirements and 
their interaction 

No effective date 

 GRAP 18 Segment Reporting No effective date 

 

    GRAP 18   Segment Reporting: 
  

The standard requires the identification and aggregation of the operating segments of the entity into reportable segments. For each of the reportable segments identified details of the financial 
performance and financial position will be disclosed. The precise impact of this on the financial statements of the entity is still being assessed but it is expected that this will only result in additional 
disclosures without affecting the underlying accounting.  This standard does not yet have an effective date. 

 
   SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES 

The use of judgment, estimates and assumptions is inherent to the process of preparing   annual financial statements. These judgements, estimates and assumptions affect the amounts presented in 
the annual financial statements. Uncertainties about these estimates and assumptions could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the relevant asset or 
liability in future periods. 

    Judgements 

In the process of applying these accounting policies, management has made the following judgements that may have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.  

    Estimates 
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Estimates are informed by historical experience, information currently available to management, assumptions, and other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. These 
estimates are reviewed on a regular basis. Changes in estimates that are not due to errors are processed in the period of the review and applied prospectively. 

    

In the process of applying the entity’s accounting policies the following estimates, were made: 

    

    Other provisions 

Provisions are measured as the present value of the estimated future outflows required to settle the obligation. In the process of determining the best estimate of the amounts that will be required 
in future to settle the provision management considers the weighted average probability of the potential outcomes of the provisions raised. This measurement entails determining what the different 
potential outcomes are for a provision as well as the financial impact of each of those potential outcomes. Management then assigns a weighting factor to each of these outcomes based on the 
probability that the outcome will materialise in future. The factor is then applied to each of the potential outcomes and the factored outcomes are then added together to arrive at the weighted 
average value of the provisions. 

    Depreciation and amortisation 

Depreciation and amortisation recognised on property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are determined with reference to the useful lives and residual values of the underlying items. The 
useful lives and residual values of assets are based on management’s estimation of the asset’s condition, expected condition at the end of the period of use, its current use, expected future use and 
the entity’s expectations about the availability of finance to replace the asset at the end of its useful life. In evaluating the how the condition and use of the asset informs the useful life and residual 
value management considers the impact of technology and minimum service requirements of the assets. 
 

    Effective interest rate 



KALAHARI KID CORPORATION 
Notes to Financial Statements  

for the year ended 31 March 2016 

 

 

The entity uses an appropriate interest rate, taking into account guidance provided in the standards, and applying professional judgement to the specific circumstances, to discount future cash flows. 
The entity used the following in arriving at the effective interest rate used: 
 

No Consideration Inputs related to the 
consideration 

 1 Base rate used as starting point prime rate  

 

     
Biological assets 

In determining the fair value less cost to sell of biological assets the entity applied the market related selling price of the biological assets as derived from [auction information] as the basis for the 
fair value. 
The inputs used in the determination of fair value are as follows: 
 
 
 

No Significant variables considered  Assumption / estimate 
employed 

 1. Average maturity of biological asset 4-5 years (female), 6-8 
years (male) 

 2. Market  value per:   

 3. Kg (for animals)  R 52 – 58 per kg 
Size dependant 

 4. Cost to sell per goat  R 70.00 (slaughter 
fees) 

 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

    Initial Recognition 
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The entity recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in its Statement of Financial Position when, and only when, the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 
This is achieved through the application of trade date accounting. 

    

Upon initial recognition the entity classifies financial instruments or their component parts as a financial liabilities, financial assets or residual interests in conformity with the substance of the 
contractual arrangement and to the extent that the instrument satisfies the definitions of a financial liability, a financial asset or a residual interest. 

    

Financial instruments are evaluated, based on their terms, to determine if those instruments contain both liability and residual interest components (i.e. to assess if the instruments are compound 
financial instruments). To the extent that an instrument is in fact a compound instrument, the components are classified separately as financial liabilities and residual interests as the case may be. 

    Initial Measurement 

When a financial instrument is recognised, the entity measures it initially at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset or a financial liability not subsequently measured at fair value, transaction 
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability. 

    Subsequent Measurement 

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value, amortised cost or cost. 

    

All financial assets and financial liabilities are measured after initial recognition using the following categories:  

a)     Financial instruments at fair value.  

°          Derivatives. 
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°          Compound instruments that are designated at fair value i.e. an instrument that includes a derivative and a non-derivative host contract. 

°          Instruments held for trading.  

°          Non-derivative financial assets or financial liabilities with fixed or determinable payments that are designated at fair value at initial recognition. 

°          An investment in a residual interest for which fair value can be measured reliably. 

Financial instruments that do not meet the definition of financial instruments at amortised cost or financial instruments at cost.  

    b)     Financial instruments at amortised cost.  

Non-derivative financial assets or non-derivative financial liabilities that have fixed or determinable payments, excluding those instruments that the entity designates at fair value at initial recognition 
or are held for trading.  

    c)     Financial instruments at cost. 

Investments in residual interests, which do not have quoted market prices and for which fair value cannot be determined reliably.  

    

The entity assesses which instruments should be subsequently measured at fair value, amortised cost or cost, based on the definitions of financial instruments at fair value, financial instruments at 
amortised cost or financial instruments at cost as set out above.  

    Derecognition 

A financial asset is derecognised at trade date, when: 
The cash flows from the asset expire, are settled or waived; 
a) Significant risks and rewards are transferred to another party; or 
b) Despite having retained significant risks and rewards, the entity has transferred control of the asset to another entity. 
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A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation is extinguished. Exchanges of debt instruments between a borrower and a lender are treated as the extinguishment of an existing liability and 
the recognition of a new financial liability. Where the terms of an existing financial liability are modified, it is also treated as the extinguishment of an existing liability and the recognition of a new 
liability. 

    Gains and losses 

A gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of a financial asset or financial liability measured at fair value is recognised in surplus or deficit. 

    

For financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost or cost, a gain or loss is recognised in surplus or deficit when the financial asset or financial liability is derecognised or impaired 
or through the amortisation process.  

    Offsetting 

The entity does not offset financial assets and financial liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position unless a legal right of set-off exists and the parties intend to settle on a net basis. 

    Impairments 

All financial assets measured at amortised cost, or cost, are subject to an impairment review.  The entity assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a 
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.  

    For financial assets held at amortised cost: 
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The entity first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant and individually or collectively for financial assets that are not 
individually significant. If the entity determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group 
of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or 
continues to be recognised are not included in the collective assessment of impairment.  

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset‘s 
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset‘s original effective interest rate 
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account. The amount of the loss is recognised in surplus 
or deficit.  

    

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an 
improvement in the debtor‘s credit rating), the previously recognised impairment loss shall be reversed either directly or by adjusting an allowance account. The reversal shall not result in a carrying 
amount of the financial asset that exceeds what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed. The amount of the reversal is 
recognised in surplus or deficit.  

    For financial assets held at cost: 

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on an investment in a residual interest that is not measured at fair value because its fair value cannot be measured reliably, 
the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current 
market rate of return for a similar financial asset.  Such impairment losses are not reversed.  

    Policies relating to specific financial instruments 
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Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents are measured at amortised cost. 

Cash includes cash on hand and cash with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments that are held with registered banking institutions with maturities of three months or less 
and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. 

For the purposes of the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and deposits held on call with banks.  

    

    Trade and other receivables 
Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition and subsequently stated at amortised cost, less provision for 
impairment. All trade and other receivables are assessed at least annually for possible impairment. Impairments of trade and other receivables are determined in accordance with the accounting 
policy for impairments. Impairment adjustments are made through the use of an allowance account. 

    

Bad debts are written off in the year in which they are identified as irrecoverable.  Amounts receivable within 12 months from the reporting date are classified as current.  Interest is charged on 
overdue accounts. 

     
 
Trade and other payables 

Trade payables are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
rate method. 
 

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

    Initial recognition and measurement 
Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets that are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, rental to others, or for administrative purposes and are expected 
to be used during more than one year.  

Items of property, plant and equipment are recognised as assets when it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost or 
fair value of the item can be measured reliably. 
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Items of property, plant and equipment are initially recognised as assets on acquisition date and are initially recorded at cost where acquired through exchange transactions. However, when items of 
property, plant and equipment are acquired through non-exchange transactions, those items are initially measured at their fair values as at the date of acquisition. 

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs directly attributable to bring the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of 
operating in the manner intended by the entity. Trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost at which the asset is recognised. The cost also includes the estimated costs of 
dismantling and removing the asset and restoring the site on which it is operated. 

    When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and 
equipment. These major components are depreciated separately over their useful lives. 

    Major spare parts and servicing equipment qualify as property, plant and equipment when the entity expects to use them during more than one period.  Similarly, if the major spare parts and 
servicing equipment can be used only in connection with an item of property, plant and equipment, they are accounted for as property, plant and equipment. 

    Subsequent measurement 

    Subsequent to initial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.  Land is not depreciated as it is deemed to have 
an indefinite useful life. 

    Asset class  
 Office Equipment 

 Motor Vehicles 

 Software & other intangibles 

 Computer Equipment 

 Infrastructure Assets  

Other Assets  

    Subsequent expenditure 

    Where the entity replaces parts of an asset, it derecognises the part of the asset being replaced and capitalises the new component.   
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Subsequent expenditure including major spare parts and servicing equipment qualify as property, plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met.   

Depreciation 
   

    Depreciation is calculated on the depreciable amount, using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets.  Components of assets that are significant in relation to the whole 
asset and that have different useful lives are depreciated separately. The depreciable amount is determined after taking into account an assets’ residual value, where applicable. 

  
   The assets’ residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 

    The annual depreciation rates are based on the following estimated asset useful lives:  
 
 
 

Other Assets 
Useful Life Range in 

Years 
  Computer Equipment 

7 
  Leased equipment 

3 
  Vehicles & Plant                                             5 
  Office Furniture & Fittings       

15 
  Software 4 
  Infrastructure                                               10 
  

     
 
 
 
 
 
 
Impairments 
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The entity tests for impairment where there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. An assessment of whether there is an indication of possible impairment is done at each reporting date. 
Where the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is greater than the estimated recoverable amount (or recoverable service amount), it is written down immediately to its 
recoverable amount (or recoverable service amount) and an impairment loss is charged to the Statement of Financial Performance. 

    

Where items of property, plant and equipment have been impaired, the carrying value is adjusted by the impairment loss, which is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Financial 
Performance in the period that the impairment is identified. 

An impairment is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment been recognised.  A 
reversal of the impairment is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance. 

    Derecognition 

    

Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further economic benefits or service potential expected from the use of the asset. The 
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying value and is recognised in 
the Statement of Financial Performance. 

    INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

    Initial recognition and measurement 

    An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance. The entity recognises an intangible asset in its Statement of Financial Position only when it is probable that the 
expected future economic benefits or service potential that are attributable to the asset will flow to the entity and the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably. 

    Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. 
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Where an intangible asset is acquired by the entity for no or nominal consideration (i.e. a non-exchange transaction), the cost is deemed to be equal to the fair value of that asset on the date 
acquired. 

    Subsequent measurement 

Intangible assets are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairments.  

    The cost of an intangible asset is amortised over the useful life where that useful life is finite. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the Statement of Financial 
Performance in the expense category consistent with the function of the intangible asset. 

    Amortisation and impairment 
Amortisation is charged to write off the cost of intangible assets over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method.   

The annual amortisation rates are based on the following estimated average asset lives: 

    Intangible Useful Life Range in Years  
  Computer 

Software                                            3 – 5 
  

    

The amortisation period, the amortisation method and residual value for intangible assets with finite useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date and any changes are recognised as a change in 
accounting estimate in the Statement of Financial Performance. 

     
Impairments 

    The entity tests intangible assets with finite useful lives for impairment where there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. An assessment of whether there is an indication of possible 
impairment is performed at each reporting date. Where the carrying amount of an item of an intangible asset is greater than the estimated recoverable amount (or recoverable service amount), it is 
written down immediately to its recoverable amount (or recoverable service amount) and an impairment loss is charged to the Statement of Financial Performance. 
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Intangible assets are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further economic benefits or service potential expected from the asset. The gain or loss arising on the disposal 
or retirement of an intangible asset is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying value and is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance. 

     
 

   BIOLOGICAL ASSETS 

    Recognition 

Biological assets that are not managed as part of an agricultural activity are accounted for as property, plant and equipment where they are expected to be used for longer than 12 months (refer to 
accounting policy for property, plant and equipment). 

Biological assets that are managed as part of an agricultural activity, and agricultural produce are recognised when: 

o    The entity controls the asset; and 

o    Future economic benefits or service potential from the asset is probable; and 

o    The fair value or cost of the asset can be determined. 

    Measurement 
Biological assets are measured at fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs at initial recognition as well for subsequent reporting periods. Agricultural produce (as harvested from biological assets) 
are recognised at the point of harvest. Accordingly, agricultural produce is measured at fair value less point-of-sale costs at the point of harvest. When this agricultural produce is transferred to 
inventory (for the purpose of consumption or resale) the fair value less point-of-sale costs, becomes the cost of the agricultural produce inventory. 

Where there is no active market for biological assets and it is not possible to determine the fair value of the biological assets reliably through the use of other valuation techniques, the biological 
assets are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Should the fair value of the biological asset become available or reliably determinable in subsequent 
periods, the biological asset will be measured at its fair value less point-of-sale costs.  



KALAHARI KID CORPORATION 
Notes to Financial Statements  

for the year ended 31 March 2016 

 

 

When measuring the biological asset at fair value less point-of-sale costs at initial recognition a gain arises on that asset. This gain is recognised in surplus or deficit for the period during which the 
biological asset was initially recognised. Any subsequent changes to the fair value less point-of-sale costs (which arise as a result of re-measurements at subsequent reporting dates) are also 
recognised in the surplus or deficit for the period. 

    

The gain or loss that arises on the initial recognition of agricultural produce at fair value less point-of-sale costs is also recognised in surplus or deficit in the period that it arises. 
 
 
 
 

   Derecognition 

Agricultural produce is derecognised at the point of reclassification to inventory. As the fair value less point-of-sale costs becomes the cost of the inventory, no gain or loss is derecognised at the 
point of reclassification. 

Biological assets are derecognised when the entity disposes thereof or when it is no longer probable that future economic benefits or service potential will be generated from the biological asset. 
Any gain or loss that arises at the point of derecognition is recognised in surplus or deficit at the point of derecognition. 

    IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS 

    Recognition 
The entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount (or recoverable 
service amount in the case of non-cash-generating assets), the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount (or recoverable service amount). An assets recoverable 
amount (or recoverable service amount is the higher of the fair value less costs to sell, and the value-in-use of the asset).  

Measurement 
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An asset’s recoverable amount (or recoverable service amount) is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s fair value less costs to sell and its value-in-use. This recoverable amount (or 
recoverable service amount) is determined for individual assets, unless those individual assets are part of a larger cash generating unit, in which case the recoverable amount (or recoverable service 
amount) is determined for the whole cash generating unit. 

    An asset is part of a cash generating unit where that asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets.  

In determining the recoverable amount (or recoverable service amount) of an asset the entity evaluates the assets to determine whether the assets are cash generating assets or non-cash generating 
assets.  

For cash generating assets the value is use is determined as a function of the discounted future cash flows from the asset.  

Where the asset is a non-cash generating asset the value in use is determined through one of the following approaches: 

►    Depreciated replacement cost approach – The current replacement cost of the asset is used as the basis for this value. This current replacement cost is depreciated for a period equal to the 
period that the asset has been in use so that the final depreciated replacement cost is representative of the age of the asset. 

►    Restoration cost approach - Under this approach, the present value of the remaining service potential of the asset is determined by subtracting the estimated restoration cost of the asset from 
the current cost of replacing the remaining service potential of the asset before impairment. 

►    Service units approach - the present value of the remaining service potential of the asset is determined by reducing the current cost of the remaining service potential of the asset before 
impairment, to conform with the reduced number of service units expected from the asset in its impaired state. 

The decision as to which approach to use is dependent on the nature of the identified impairment. 
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In assessing value-in-use for cash-generating assets, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time 
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, other fair value indicators are used. 

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance in those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset. 

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, 
the Entity makes an estimate of the assets or cash-generating unit's recoverable amount.  

    Reversal of impairment losses 

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was 
recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of 
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance unless the asset is carried at a revalued 
amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase. 

    EMPLOYEE BENEFITS  

    Short term employee benefits 

Short term employee benefits encompasses all those benefits that become payable in the short term, i.e. within a financial year or within 12 months after the financial year. Therefore, short term 
employee benefits include remuneration, compensated absences and bonuses. 

    

Short term employee benefits are recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance as services are rendered, except for non-accumulating benefits, which are recognised when the specific event 
occurs. These short term employee benefits are measured at their undiscounted costs in the period the employee renders the related service or the specific event occurs. 
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    Defined contribution plans 

Contributions made towards the fund are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Financial Performance in the period that such contributions become payable. This contribution expense is 
measured at the undiscounted amount of the contribution paid or payable to the fund. A liability is recognised to the extent that any of the contributions have not yet been paid. Conversely an asset 
is recognised to the extent that any contributions have been paid in advance. 

    

    LEASES 

    The entity as Lessee 

Recognition 

Leases are classified as finance leases where substantially all the risks and rewards associated with ownership of an asset are transferred to the entity through the lease agreement. Assets subject to 
finance leases are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position at the inception of the lease, as is the corresponding finance lease liability. 

    

Assets subject to operating leases, i.e. those leases where substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the lessee through the lease, are not recognised in the 
Statement of Financial Position. The operating lease expense is recognised over the course of the lease arrangement.  

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at inception date; namely whether fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on 
the use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset. 

For arrangements entered into prior to 1 January 2005, the date of inception is deemed to be 1 January 2005, in accordance with the transitional requirements of iGRAP 3. 

    Measurement 

Assets subject to a finance lease, as recognised in the Statement of Financial Position, are measured (at initial recognition) at the lower of the fair value of the assets and the present value of the 
future minimum lease payments. Subsequent to initial recognition these capitalised assets are depreciated over the contract term. 
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The finance lease liability recognised at initial recognition is measured at the present value of the future minimum lease payments. Subsequent to initial recognition this liability is carried at 
amortised cost, with the lease payments being set off against the capital and accrued interest. The allocation of the lease payments between the capital and interest portion of the liability is effected 
through the application of the effective interest method. 

The finance charges resulting from the finance lease are expensed, through the Statement of Financial Performance, as they accrue. The finance cost accrual is determined using the effective interest 
method.  

The lease expense recognised for operating leases is charged to the Statement of Financial Performance on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. To the extent that the straight-
lined lease payments differ from the actual lease payments the difference is recognised in the Statement of Financial Position as either lease payments in advance (operating lease asset) or lease 
payments payable (operating lease liability) as the case may be. This resulting asset and / or liability is measured as the undiscounted difference between the straight-line lease payments and the 
contractual lease payments. 
 
Derecognition 

The finance lease liabilities are derecognised when the entity’s obligation to settle the liability is extinguished. The assets capitalised under the finance lease are derecognised when the entity no 
longer expects any economic benefits or service potential to flow from the asset. 

The operating lease liability is derecognised when the entity’s obligation to settle the liability is extinguished. The operating lease asset is derecognised when the entity no longer anticipates 
economic benefits to flow from the asset. 

    REVENUE 

Revenue from Exchange Transactions 

Revenue from exchange transactions refers to revenue that accrues to the entity directly in return for services rendered or goods sold, the value of which approximates the consideration received or 
receivable, excluding indirect taxes, rebates and discounts. 
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    Recognition 

    Revenue from exchange transactions is only recognised once all of the following criteria have been satisfied: 

a)   The entity retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold; 

b)   The amount of revenue can be measured reliably; and 

c)   It is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity and the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be 
measured reliably. 

Revenue arising out of situations where the entity acts as an agent on behalf of another entity (the principal) is limited to the amount of any fee or commission payable to the entity as compensation 
for executing the agreed services. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  Measurement 

Revenue from exchange transactions is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable taking into account the amount of any trade discounts and volume rebates allowed by 
the entity. 

    Expenditure from Exchange Transactions 

The accounting policy for expenditure arising from exchange-transactions is similar to the policy for exchange revenue.  

    Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions 
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Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transactions. 

Revenue from non-exchange transaction arises when the entity either receives value from another entity without directly giving approximately equal value in exchange or gives value to another 
entity without directly receiving approximately equal value in exchange.   

Revenue from non-exchange transactions is generally recognised to the extent that the related receipt or receivable qualifies for recognition as an asset and there is no liability to repay the amount. 

    Measurement 

An asset that is recognised as a result of a non-exchange transaction is recognised at its fair value at the date of the transfer.  Consequently, revenue arising from a non-exchange transaction is 
measured at the fair value of the asset received, less the amount of any liabilities that are also recognised due to conditions that must still be satisfied.  

    
Where there are conditions attached to a grant, transfer or donation that gave rise to a liability at initial recognition, that liability is transferred to revenue as and when the conditions attached to the 
grant are met.  

    

Grants without any conditions attached are recognised as revenue in full when the asset is recognised, at an amount equalling the fair value of the asset received.  

Interest earned on the investment is treated in accordance with grant conditions.  If it is payable to the funder it is recorded as part of the creditor. 

    Expenditure relating to Non-Exchange Transactions 
The accounting policy for expenditure arising from non-exchange transactions is similar to policy for non-exchange revenue.  
 
 

SURPLUS OR DEFICIT 

Gains and Losses 
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Gains and losses arising from fair value adjustments on investments and loans, and from the disposal of assets, are presented separately from other revenue in the Statement of Financial 
Performance.  

    
Income, expenditure, gains and losses are recognised in surplus or deficit except for the exceptional cases where recognition directly in net assets is specifically allowed or required by a Standard of 
GRAP. 

    VALUE ADDED TAX 

The entity accounts for Value Added Tax on the payments basis. 
 
UNAUTHORISED EXPENDITURE 

Unauthorised expenditure is expenditure that has not been budgeted for, expenditure that is not in terms of the conditions of an allocation received from another sphere of government or organ of 
state and expenditure in the form of a grant that is not permitted.  Unauthorised expenditure is accounted for as an expense in the Statement of Financial Performance and where recovered, it is 
subsequently accounted for as income in the Statement of Financial Performance. 
 
IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE 

Irregular expenditure is expenditure that is contrary to the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA)] and the Public Office Bearers Act (Act No. 20 of 1998) or is in contravention of the entity’s supply 
chain management policies.  Irregular expenditure excludes unauthorised expenditure.   Irregular expenditure is accounted for as expenditure in the Statement of Financial Performance and where 
recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance. 

    FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is expenditure that was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care been exercised.  Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is accounted for as 
expenditure in the Statement of Financial Performance and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance.  
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RECOVERY OF UNAUTHORISED, IRREGULAR, FRUITLESS & WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE 

The recovery of unauthorised, irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure is based on legislated procedures, and is recognised when the recovery thereof from the responsible officials is probable.  
The recovery of unauthorised, irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure is treated as other income. 
 
POST-REPORTING DATE EVENTS 

    Events after the reporting date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the reporting date and the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.  Two 
types of events can be identified: 

·       those that is indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date (non-adjusting events after the        
      reporting date). 

The entity will adjust the amounts recognised in the financial statements to reflect adjusting events after the reporting date once the event occurred. 

The entity will disclose the nature of the event and an estimate its financial effect or a statement that such estimate cannot be made in respect of all material non-adjusting events, where non-
disclosure could influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements. 
 
RELATED PARTIES 

The entity has processes and controls in place to aid in the identification of related parties. A related party is a person or an entity with the ability to control or jointly control the other party, or 
exercise significant influence over the other party, or vice versa, or an entity that is subject to common control, or joint control. Related party relationships where control exists are disclosed 
regardless of whether any transactions took place between the parties during the reporting period.  

Where transactions occurred between the entity any one or more related parties, and those transactions were not within: 

·       normal supplier and/or client/recipient relationships on terms and conditions no more or less favourable  
      than those which it is reasonable to expect the entity to have adopted if dealing with that individual entity  
      or person in the same circumstances; and  

·       terms and conditions within the normal operating parameters established by the reporting entity’s legal  
       mandate;  
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